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The meeting via electronic media only
according to the Emergency Decree on Electronic Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020),
the Notification of the Ministry of Digital Economy and Society
RE: Standards for Maintaining Security of Meetings

via Electronic Means B.E. 2563 (2020) and other related laws and regulations

(e-AGM)

GMM Grammy Public Company Limited kindly requests for shareholders’ and/or
proxies’ cooperation to study the details about procedures for registration of e-
AGM, and prepare identity documents, as well as study the procedures for voting
and attending the e-AGM or appointing an independent director of the Company

to act as your proxy to vote on your behalf.

Office of Corporate Secretary
02-669-9291 , 02-669-9152

Website
www.gmmgrammy.com




Privacy Notice
For the 2025 Annual General Meeting of GMM Grammy Plc. via Electronic Media only (“e-AGM”)

GMM Grammy Public Company Limited (“Company”) values any personal information of the shareholder(s) and/or
proxy (“you”) and acts in compliance with Personal Data Protection Act B.E.2562. The Company would like to
inform as follows:

Data Controller information: GMM Grammy Public Company Limited: The contacting details are as appear in the
invitation for the Company’s e-AGM.

1. Personal Data: The Company needs to collect your personal data information for the purpose of e-AGM
arrangement and e-AGM attendance as follows:

1.1. General Personal Data: Name, Age, Address, Telephone Number, Identification Number, Bank Account,
e-mail, Fax number, Shareholder ID, Occupation
In addition, the Company will also take photographs and carry out video recording during the e-AGM.

2. Objectives, Legal basis, and Data Processing: The Company will process the personal data in accordance with
the objectives and legal basis as follows:

2.1. Legal basis

- The Company will collect and use your data in item 1.1 for the purpose of calling, arranging, and
conducting the e-AGM including verifying your identification and sending any related documents and
carrying out any action according to the e-AGM resolutions and the laws as well as carrying out any other
activities to comply with the laws and any order of the competent authorities in accordance with Public
Limited Companies Act, B. E. 2535, Civil and Commercial Code, the Emergency Decree on Electronic
Meeting B.E. 2563 , the Notification of the Ministry of Digital Economy and Society RE: Standards for
Maintaining Security of Meetings via Electronic Means B.E. 2563 and other related laws and regulations.

2.2. Legitimate interest

- The Company will collect and use your data in item 1.1 for the purpose of preparing e-AGM minutes, and
keeping evidences of your attendance to the e-AGM as well as for any activity as necessary related to the
legitimate interest of Company and other person to the extent that it is within your reasonable expectation.

- The Company will take photograph and record the video during the e-AGM for the use of reporting and
publicizing the e-AGM via electronic means and printing. You may appear in the photograph or video
recording of the e-AGM but the details of your identity will not be identified.

3. Source of Personal Data: The Company will collect your personal data directly from you and from Thailand
Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

4. Personal Data Storage: The Company will keep your personal data so long as necessary for the objectives
stated above. However, the Company expects to keep your personal data in item 1.1 for a period of 10 years
from the date that the Company receives your data. To comply with their above objectives, upon the lapse of
those periods, the Company will destroy your personal data or anonymize such data.

5. Right of Data Owner : Personal data owner has the rights to access and receive the copy of your personal data,
to object the collection, use, or disclosure of the data, to correct your personal data, to erase your personal data
within the prescribed period, to restrain from using your personal data, to transfer your personal data to another
person, and to complain. If you would like to exercise any of your rights, please contact the Company and the
Company will consider your request and contact you as soon as possible. If the Company fails to comply with
the laws related to personal data protection, you can file a complaint to the Office of the Personal Data
Protection Commission.
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-Translation-

March 28, 2025

Subject : Invitation to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
To : The shareholders of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited
Enclosures

1. Objectives and rationale of the Board of Directors’ opinions to facilitate shareholders’
considerations

2. Financial Summary from the Annual Registration Statement / the 2024 Annual Report
(Form 56-1 One Report)

3. Profiles of the nominated candidates to replace directors who retired by rotation and the
qualification of the Company’s independent director (3.1 - 3.4)

4. Profiles of the Auditors Nominated as the Auditors of the Company in 2025 (4.1-4.3)

5. Details of the independent directors proposed as proxy holders (in the event that
an independent director is appointed as a proxy holder)

6. The Company’s Articles of Association concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

7. Documents and evidence that attendees have to identity proofing before joining the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and procedure for proxy granting, registration
and voting.

8.  Guidelines for attending General Meeting of Shareholders via Electronic Media (e-AGM)
9.  Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2025 AGM

10. QR Code Downloading Procedures for Documents of the 2025 AGM and the Annual
Registration Statement /the 2024 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report)

11. Three types of Proxy Forms (Form A, B, and C), according to the announcement of
Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550 and as
amended and P.O. Box Envelope in case of returning the form by post (It is
recommended to use type B).

12. Registration Form for attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
(e-AGM)

Enclosures (Being separated from the Invitation Letter)
= Registration form with barcode

The Board of Directors (‘the Board”) of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited
(“the Company”) at its Meeting No.1/2025 convened on February 26, 2025, (the “Board of Directors’
Meeting”) has resolved to invite all shareholders to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (the “Shareholders’ Meeting” or the “Meeting”), which will be convened on Tuesday, April 29,
2025, at 2.00 p.m., in the form of an electronic meeting, only (“e-Meeting” or “e-AGM”) via the Zoom
system, which will be broadcast live from the Auditorium Room, 21st floor of GMM Grammy Place, located
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at

No. 50, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok, in compliance with the
Emergency Decree on Electronic Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020) , the Notification of the Ministry of Digital
Economy and Society RE: Standards for Maintaining Security of Meetings via Electronic Means B.E. 2563
(2020) and other related laws and regulations, to consider the following agenda items:

Agenda 1

To acknowledge the declaration of the 2024 operational results and the Company’s Annual

Agenda 2

Report
The Board’s opinion: The Board was deemed appropriate to report the Company’s

operational results and submit the 2024 Annual Report (56-1 One Report) of the Company to
the Meeting for acknowledgment.

To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statements

Agenda 3

for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed to the Meeting to approve the Company’s
Financial Statement (Statement of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income
Statement) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, which were reviewed by the Board
and the Audit Committee, and were duly audited and certified by the certified public
accountant.

To approve the appropriation of the 2024 net profit as statutory reserve fund.

Agenda 4

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed to the Meeting to approve the appropriation of net
profit as statutory reserve fund in the amount of Baht 54,920,386, or 2 percent of the net
profit for the year 2024 ending on December 31, 2024 of the separate financial statements.
Because the separate financial statements ending on December 31, 2024 of the Company
had a net profit of Baht 2,660,670,204, resulting in the Company having the statutory reserve
fund as of December 31, 2024, in the amount of Baht 81,994,973, representing 10 percent of
the registered capital, which is fully in compliance with the legal .

To approve the omission of dividend payment from the 2024 operational results.

Agenda 5

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed to the Meeting to approve the omission of dividend
payments from the 2024 operational results. The Company had a net profit of Baht 2,660.7
million and retained earnings of Baht 3,163.2 million in the separate financial statements
ending on December 31, 2024, respectively. Although , which indicates a substantial profit,
but the Company has utilized the majority of these funds to repay all outstanding loans, as
well as to invest in additional growth businesses, and to ensure the Company has sufficient
working capital for the Company's business.

To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for

the year 2025.

The Board’s opinion: (The directors involved did not attend the meeting and consider this
agenda.)

In 2025, there are 3 directors who are due to retire by rotation, i.e., (1) Dr. Naris Chaiyasoot,
(2) Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong and (3) Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham

Invitation to the 2025 AGM Page 2 of 5 GMM Grammy Plc.
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Agenda 6

In accordance with the opinions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board
of Directors, a thorough, careful, and appropriate screening process was conducted to ensure
that the individuals nominated possess the qualifications suitable for the company's business
operations. Therefore, the resolution was passed to propose to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to consider and approve the reappointment of one director who has completed their
term (Director No. (3)), namely Mr.Fahmai Damrongchaitham for another term.

Additionally, it was proposed to appoint external experts as directors to replace the two
directors who have completed their terms (Directors No. (1) and (2)). Specifically, it was
proposed to appoint Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong as an independent director to replace Dr. Naris
Chaiyasoot, and to appoint Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij as an independent director to
replace Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong, whose terms have expired in 2025 and who do not
wish to be reappointed for another term.

In accordance with the composition of directors of GRAMMY, namely;

(1) Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong (proposed to appoint as a new independent director to replace
Dr. Naris Chaiyasoot)

(2) Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij (proposed to appoint as a new independent director to
replace Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong)

(3) Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham (proposed to reappoint an executive director for another
term)

(Profiles of those 3 candidates and the qualification of the Company’s independent director
are described in Enclosure 3.1 - 3.4)

To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2025.

Agenda 7

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed that the Meeting to approve the Board of Director
and Audit Committee’s remuneration for the year 2025 at the amount of Baht 6,650,000,
which is the same amounts as the previous year, according to the rules and details set forth.
No remuneration shall be paid to other sub-committees. According to the proposal that the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered and appropriately screened and
the Board of Directors has approved.

To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the

ear 2025.

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed that the Meeting appoint EY Office Limited as
the Company’s auditor for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2025, and that any one of
the individuals below be responsible for reviewing or audit and provide an opinion on the financial
statements of the Company, namely (1) Mrs. Poonnard Paocharoen CPA No0.5238 or
(2) Ms. Kosum Cha-em CPA No0.6011 (3) Ms. Vilailak Laohasrisakul CPA No.6140 (Profiles of
the 3 Auditors Nominated as the Auditors of the Company are described in Enclosure 4.1-4.3).
In addition, the Meeting is proposed to approve the audit fee of the Company for the year 2025 at
the amount of not exceeding Baht 2,490,000, which is Baht 210,000 more than the previous year,
representing approximately 9.2%, as proposed by the Audit Committee, which has appropriately
screened and approved by the Board of Directors.

Invitation to the 2025 AGM Page 3 of 5 GMM Grammy Plc.
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Agenda 8 Other matters. (if any)

The Board’s opinion: The Board deemed it appropriate to include this agenda so as to
comply with the section 105 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.2535 (as amended)
specifying that shareholders holding shares amounting not less than one-third of the total number
of paid-up shares are qualified to ask the Meeting to consider any matter other than those set out
in the invitation letter. Additionally, this agenda is also set for shareholders who wish to ask any
further questions or provide any other opinions (if any). However, according to the Principles of
Corporate Governance of Listed Company issued by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) and AGM
Checklist of Thai Investors Association, it is not recommended to add any other agendas that are
not specified in the invitation letter to the Meeting to approve or vote.

In this regard, the Company specifies the names of shareholders for the rights to attend and vote at
the 2025 AGM shall be recorded on March 20, 2025 (Record Date). The company would like to invite the
shareholders to attend the Shareholders’ Meeting at the aforementioned date and time at the same time, which
the Company will open for registration in the e-AGM (By Inventech Connect system) to attend the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders (e-AGM) from 12.00 a.m. on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 onwards.

The Company recommends Shareholders and/or Proxy holder to study the conditions and
methods of registration procedure, including submitting the request form to attend the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders for the year 2025 via electronic media (e-AGM) (according to Enclosure 12) and submit all
relevant documents that require to identity proofing for receiving individual link to attend the e-AGM and the
system access manual, together with study vote casting procedure as detailed in Enclosure 8.

If any shareholder wishes to grant a proxy to another person instead of attending the Meeting
in person to vote on shareholders’ behalf. Please fill in the details and sign the Proxy Form A or Form B either.
(Enclosure 11) to be complete, foreign shareholders which appoints a custodian in Thailand to be a stock
depository and keeper, please use one of the Proxy Form A or Form B or Form C (Custodian). (Enclosure 11)
with a stamp duty of Baht 20 attached. Shareholders can read more details about how to appoint a proxy in
Enclosure 7.

In the event that shareholders are unable to attend the meeting, able to grant a proxy to the
Company’s independent directors (Enclosure 5) instead of attending the Meeting in person to vote on
shareholders’ behalf according to the proxy form by sending a proxy that shows the desire to vote (Recommend
to use the Proxy Form B (Enclosure 11). To do so, please complete the Proxy From B and give all vote
instructions, and submit it along with accompanying documents for proxy appointment in the envelope enclosed
with the 2025 Notice AGM (No stamp needed) to the Company by April 18, 2025. (Please study the details of
documents and evidence that attendees have to identity proofing before joining the 2025 AGM and procedure for
proxy granting, registration and voting in Enclosure 7).

For shareholders to receive the greatest benefit at the Meeting and fully protect the rights as
a shareholder, should you have any queries that you would like the Company to clarify on any agenda, you can
send the questions prior to the Meeting, please sending Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2025
AGM (Enclosure 9) to the company secretary via email : cs@gmmgrammy.com or by placing the completed
form in the envelope enclosed with the Notice (No stamp needed) to the Company Secretary, GMM Grammy
Public Company Limited, 41st Floor, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlongtoeinuea,

Invitation to the 2025 AGM Page 4 of 5 GMM Grammy Plc.
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Wattana, Bangkok 10110 within April 18, 2025, or any shareholder who wishes to obtain a hard copy of the
Annual Registration Statement /the 2024 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report) , please contact Office of
Corporate Secretary.

To provide the shareholders’ convenience in accessing the above information, the entire set of
documents related to the Invitation of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, together with the
proxy forms and all related documents , including downloading documents on the Company’s website
(www.gmmgrammy.com), both in Thai and English, March 28, 2025, onwards. The 2024 annual
registration statement / Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report) shall be publicized on the Company’s
website prior to the meeting date, not less than 21 days.

Yours Faithfully,

(Mr. Paiboon Damrongchaitham)
Chairman of the Board

By resolution of the Board

For information regarding the Shareholders’ Meeting, please contact:
Office of Corporate Secretary Tel. (+662) 669 9291 / (+662) 669 9152 Email: cs@gmmgrammy.com

Invitation to the 2025 AGM Page 5 of 5 GMM Grammy Plc.
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Objectives and rationale of the Board of Directors’ opinions
to facilitate shareholders’ considerations.

Agenda 1 To acknowledge the declaration of the 2024 operational results and the Company’s Annual
Report.

The report by the Board and management with respect to the Company’s business
performance for the year 2024 ended December 31, 2024, has been produced portraying the operational
results of the Company during 2024. The Board, having considered and deemed it correct and sufficient.
Therefore, The Board was a resolution to approve and proposes that the Meeting acknowledge the
Company’s business performance during 2024 and as contained in the Annual Registration Statement /the
2024 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report). The shareholders can download from the QR Code
appearing on the “Form of the Meeting notification with QR code for downloading meeting documents,
which was delivered to the shareholders together with this Invitation Letter.

Required Resolution:

This agenda does not require any vote, as this is to inform the Meeting for acknowledgment.

Agenda 2 To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income
Statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.

In accordance with Section 112 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.2535 (and as
amended), the Company has to prepare the latest Statement of Financial Position and the Income
Statement as at the end of the Company's fiscal year, to be presented and approved at the Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors therefore resolved to approve and deem it appropriate to proposes that
the Meeting to approve the Company’s Financial Statement (Statement of Financial Position and the
Comprehensive Income Statement) for the year as of December 31, 2024, had been reviewed by the Board
and the Audit Committee, having considered and deemed them correct, complete and sufficient pursuant to the
generally accepted accounting standards, and was duly audited and certified by auditors from EY Office
Limited, who is the auditor of the Company. Details from the Financial Statement (the Statement of Financial
Position and the Comprehensive Income Statement) as of December 31, 2024, appears in the Annual
Registration Statement /the 2024 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report) page. 224-312 and a printed
summary of key financial information from the 2024 Annual Report is also attached to this Invitation Letter
(Enclosure 2)

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be
passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.
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Agenda 3 To approve the appropriation of the 2024 net profit as statutory reserve fund.

According to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.2535 (and as amended)
and the Company’s Articles of Association, Clause 38 which stated: “The Company has to allocate not less
than 5% of annual net profits as statutory reserves, net of accumulated losses (if any), until the value of
statutory reserves is not less than 10% of registered capital unless the Company has another rule or
regulation that otherwise specifies a higher reserve.”

In this regard, according to the resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders held on April 29, 2024, to approve the Company Appropriate net profit as statutory reserve
fund at the rate of 5% of net profit for the year 2023, ended December 31, 2023, of the separate financial
statements. The total amount is Baht 18,090,064. As a result, the statutory reserve fund as of December
31, 2023, is Baht 27,074,587.

Due to the company has net profit for the year 2024 separate financial statements ending
31 December 2024 in the total amount of Baht 2,660,670,204. Therefore, to comply with the law and the
Company’s Articles of Association, above, the Board of Directors proposed to the shareholders’ meeting to
consider and approve the appropriation of net profit for the year 2024 as a statutory reserve fund, in the
totaling Baht 54,920,386 or equal 2 % of the net profit for the year 2024, ended December 31, 2024, of the
separate financial statements. As a resulting in the Company having the statutory reserve fund as of
December 31, 2024, in the amount of Baht 81,994,973, representing 10 percent of the registered capital,
which is fully in compliance with the legal.

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be
passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 4 To approve the omission of dividend payment from the 2024 operational results.

The Company has a policy paying the dividends to shareholders at a rate of not less than
40% of the net profit after corporate income tax each year, based upon the separate Company’s financial
statements. According to Section 115 of the Public Act and the Company’s Articles of Association Clause
37 which stated that “Dividends cannot be disbursed from other sources of funds except profits. In the
event that the Company has accumulated losses, no dividends will be paid.”

From the 2024 operational results. The Company had a net profit of Baht 2,660.7 million and
retained earnings of Baht 3,163.2 million in the separate financial statements ending on December 31,
2024, respectively. Althought, which indicates a substantial profit, but the Company has utilized the
majority of these funds to repay all outstanding loans, as well as to invest in additional growth businesses,
and to ensure the Company has sufficient working capital for the Company's business. Therefore, the
Board of Directors deems it appropriate to propose to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to
consider and approve the omission of the dividend payment from the 2024 operating results.

- intentionally left blank -
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Details comparing the past 3 years for the dividend payments are shown as follows:

Details of dividend payment The separate financial statements
2024 2023 2022
The separate financial statements
Net Profits/(Loss):Million Baht 2,660.7 361.80 136.38
Retained Earnings/(Deficit):Million Baht 3,163.2 554.76 211.05
Earnings /(Loss) per Share:Baht 3.24 0.44 0.17
Rate of Dividend Payment
Interim dividends payment (Baht per share - - -
Annual Dividend Payment (Baht/Share) None - -
Total Dividends Payment (Baht per Share)
Number of Shares (Million Share) 819.9 819.9 819.9
Total Dividend Payouts (Million Baht) - - -
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) - - -

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be
passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 5 To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation

for the year 2025.

Pursuant to the Public Act and Clause 14 of the Company’s Articles of Association, one-
third of all directors shall be retired by rotation each year. At this 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, there are 3 directors (from 9 directors) due to retire by rotation, namely:

Name Position in the Board Position in the Sub-Committees

Independent Director e Chairman of the Audit Committee
e Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

1. Dr. Naris Chaiyasoot

2. Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong Independent Director e Member of the Audit Committee

3. Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham Executive Director .

Member of the Group Executive

(Authorized Director) Committee

o Member of the Risk Management
Committee

With respect to the Company’s Good Corporate Governance Policy, the shareholders were
given the opportunity to nominate the names of qualified persons for being considered to be elected as
directors in advance for the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via the Company’s website
www.gmmgrammy.com, from September 4, 2024, to December 4, 2024. However, no shareholder
nominated the qualified persons to the Company.

Nonetheless, the Company received a letter dated January 31, 2025, from Dr. Naris
Chaiyasoot and Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong , independent directors whose due to retire by rotation at
this Meeting, stated their intention not to be considered for a renewal of directorship term. Due to the
principles of good corporate governance policy It is determined that independent directors should hold
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positions in listed companies for no more than 9 years. They have already held the position of independent
director for 12 years and 9 years, in order, and therefore would like not to renew their term at the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Hence, The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the “NRC”) and the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) at the Meeting No.1/2025 held on February 26, 2025, had deliberately more details
on the qualifications of directors in detail, taking into account the individual directors’ qualifications in
various aspects based on the best interest of the Company under the policy, criteria and nomination
process of the Company (Details appear in the Annual Registration Statement /the 2024 Annual Report
(Form 56-1 One Report) under the heading "Corporate Governance> Recruitment and Appointment of the
Directors" Page 129-130, Therefore, the resolution was passed to propose to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders to consider and approve the reappointment of one director who has completed their term
(Director No. (3)), namely Mr.Fahmai Damrongchaitham for another term. is fit to work for the Company as
the director for another term because of his qualifications that meets the requirements of the Public Act,
has qualifications suitable for the business of the company, his knowledge, abilities, experience, vision,
and working performance including his devotion and support to the Company’s business operation in the
past years.

In addition, the NRC and the Board have recruited and selected qualified individuals from
external sources who meet the appropriate qualifications and do not conflict with the qualifications of
independent directors as stipulated by the Company, according to the Company's processes and
procedures, to propose to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval,
and to propose their appointment as independent directors to replace two directors whose terms have
retired (i.e., directors numbered (1) and (2)). Specifically, it was proposed to appoint Mr. Vithit
Leenutaphong as an independent director to replace Dr. Naris Chaiyasoot, and to appoint Mrs. Nidcha
Jirametthanakij as an independent director to replace Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong, whose terms have
expired in 2025 and who do not wish to be re-appointed for another term.

Furthermore, Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong and Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij are not
shareholders, directors of the Company, or have been any business relationships with the Company and
its subsidiaries that might impede their independent judgment. Additionally, they are not and have not
been significant shareholders or controlling persons of those with such business relationships, and they
have not been professional service providers who received fees from the Company or its subsidiaries
within the past two years. Therefore, the qualifications of Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong and Mrs. Nidcha
Jirametthanakij do not fall under the prohibitions as the qualification of the Company’s independent
director.

Therefore, the Board of Directors has considered and is of the opinion that the persons to be
nominated as independent directors have the qualifications in accordance with the laws related to the
regulations related to independent directors. Therefore, it has considered and proposed to the AGM to
approve the appointment of Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong and Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij as independent
directors, because their qualifications are in line with the independent director definition of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Company, and both of them will
be able to express their opinions independently, as independent directors , in accordance with the
relevant details of the definition of independent directors of the Company are set out in Enclosure 3.4.
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In accordance with the composition of directors of GRAMMY, namely;

(1) Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong (proposed to appoint as a new independent director to replace
Dr. Naris Chaiyasoot)

(2) Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij ((proposed to appoint as a new independent director to
replace Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong)

(3) Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham (proposed to reappoint an executive director for another
term)

Therefore, the Board of Directors (except those directors who have conflicts of interest in
this agenda) considered and scrutinized the suitability of the person who was nominated for this time have
passed the consideration process as specified by the Company and have qualifications in accordance with
the relevant rules and regulations and are suitable for the Company’s business and the scope of roles and
responsibilities of the 1 director whose term has expired and 2 persons proposed for consideration to be
appointed as new directors to replace the directors who do not wish to renew their terms this time, taking
into account the maximum benefits of the Company as the main principle. In accordance with the opinion
of the NRC above and the Board of Directors therefore resolved to propose the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders to consider to endorse the appointment of the 3 afore mentioned candidates as the
Company’s directors, individually as follows:

Agenda 5.1 To Consider and approve the appointment of Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham as
an executive director for another term.

Agenda 5.2 To Consider and approve the appointment of Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong as a new
independent director.

Agenda 5.3 To Consider and approve the appointment of Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij as a
new independent director.

Their profiles and other supporting information and the qualification of the Company’s
independent directors who retired by rotation in Enclosure 3.1 - 3.4.

Required Resolution:

A resolution for electing directors can be passed according to the method and procedure as
stated in Clause 13 of the Company’s Articles of Association (Enclosure 8) and a resolution under this
agenda can be passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast
the vote.

Agenda 6 To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2025.

Pursuant to Clause 26 of the Company’s Articles of Association that “The Company shall
pay the following compensation to the directors: (1) Annual bonus for the position of the Company’s
director. (2) Salary, bonus in the case that any director being employed by the Company.
(3) Compensation under the business contract between the Company and a director or any compensation
in order to acquire the Company’s normal commercial interest.”
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For the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the NRC and the Board considered
the Board’s remuneration and the Sub-Committees’ remuneration for the year 2025 according to the
Company’s the guidelines and procedures by considering various factors in support of their determination,
including the scope of responsibilities, contributions, the work performance of the Company’s directors,
business expansion, a comparison with other companies in the same industry and similar nature of the
business, as well as the report of the 2024 Survey on Directors’ Remuneration of Listed Companies in the
Stock Exchange of Thailand conducted by Thai Institution of Directors (IOD). It was apparent that the
Company’s Board of Directors’ and Audit Committee’s remuneration was not different from the overall
market average rate. Therefore, the Board of Director was deemed appropriate to propose to approve to
the Meeting as the followings:

1) The Board of Directors and Audit Committee’s Remuneration

It was deemed appropriate to propose the Meeting to approve the Board of Directors and
Audit Committee’s remuneration for the year 2025 as follows:

1.1) Monetary Remuneration

It was deemed appropriate to approve the Board of Directors and Audit Committee’s
remuneration totaling at the amount of Baht 6,650,000 (Six million six hundred and fifty thousand baht),
which is the same amount as the previous year, comprising of the monthly remuneration, the meeting
allowance (being paid to a director who attends the meeting only) and annual bonus, as detailed below:

(Unit: Baht/year)

2025
Committee 2024 2023
(Proposed)
The Board of Directors Total proposed Total remuneration Total remuneration
remuneration not exceeding not exceeding not exceeding
. . Baht 6,650,000 Baht 6,650,000 Baht 6,650,000
Audit Committee

1.2) Non-Monetary Remuneration / Other Benefits

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (D&O) in the amount of Baht 300 million, covering
directors and executives of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2) The Board of Directors’ Remuneration Criteria

¢  Monthly Remuneration pay to the Board of Directors.

Monthly Remuneration (baht / person / month)
Committee Position
2025 (Proposed) 2024 2023
Chairman of the Board 50,000 50,000 50,000
The Board of Independent Director 20,000 20,000 20,000
Directors Non-Executive Director 20,000 20,000 20,000
Executive Director * - None - - None - - None -

Remarks: * The Executive Director receives salary from being an employee of the Company.
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Meeting Allowance (Being paid to a director who attends the meeting only)

Enclosure 1

Meeting Allowance (baht / person / time)

Committee Position
2025 (Proposed) 2024 2023
Chairman of the Board 20,000 20,000 20,000
The Board of Independent Director 20,000 20,000 20,000
Directors Non-Executive Director 20,000 20,000 20,000
Executive Director * - None - - None - - None -

Remarks: * The Executive Director receives salary from being an employee of the Company.

Annual Bonus

The 2025 Annual Bonus will be paid from the rest of the remuneration of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee, after deducting the monthly remuneration and meeting allowances paid to
the Company's directors and the Audit Committee. The Annual Bonus will be calculated in proportion to
the number of attendance at the Board of Directors Meeting of each director. The Chairman of the Board
will receive twice of his attendance. Independent Director, Executive Director and Non-Executive Director
will receive one time of their attendance. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible for approving the appropriation of such Annual Bonus.

3) The Sub-Committees’ Remuneration

It was deemed appropriate to propose the Meeting to approve the Sub-Committees’
remuneration which was appointed by the Board as follows:

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s Remuneration Criteria as follows:

Monthly Remuneration pay to the Audit Committee.

Monthly Remuneration (baht / person / month)
Committee Position
2025 (Proposed) 2024 2023
Chawman of the Audit 30,000 30,000 30,000
Committee
The Audit Committee
Member of the Audit 10,000 10,000 10,000
Committee
- intentionally left blank -
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e  Meeting Allowance (Being paid to a member who attends the meeting only)

Meeting Allowance (baht/person/time)
Committee Position
2025 (Proposed) 2024 2023

Chairman of the Audit

) 20,000 20,000 20,000
Committee

The Audit Committee

Member of the Audit

) 20,000 20,000 20,000
Committee

¢ Non-Monetary Remuneration / Other Benefits

- None -

Other Sub-Committees

Other sub-committees, namely the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk

Management Committee, the Corporate Governance, and Ethics Committee, and the Group Executive

Committee received no remuneration.

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee’s remuneration payment in 2024 (by individuals)

In 2024, the Company compensated the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in a total
of Baht 6,650,000, which is equal to the amount approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. Details on remuneration for each director in 2024 are as follows:

Name Title Remuneration for the Board of Directors Remuneration for the
(BOD) Audit Committee (AC) Total
5 e Remuneration
. irector's . onthly
Meeting Monthly. annual Meeting Remunera Non- (BOD+AC)
Allowance | Remuneration . Allowance . monetary
gratuity tion 2024
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
(Baht)
(Baht) (Baht) (Baht) (Baht) (Baht)
1. Mr. Paiboon Chairman 200,000 600,000 462,626 - - None 1,262,626
Damrongchaitham
2. Dr. Naris Chairman of 200,000 240,000 231,313 160,000 360,000 None 1,191,313
Chaiyasoot the Audit
Committee+
Independent
Director
3. Mr. Chanitr Member of the 200,000 240,000 231,313 160,000 120,000 None 951,313
Charnchainarong Audit
Committee+
Independent
Director
4. Mr. Thana Member of the 180,000 160,000 208.182 100,000 80,000 None 728,182
Thienachariya’ Audit
Committee+
Independent
Director
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Name Title Remuneration for the Board of Directors Remuneration for the
(BOD) Audit Committee (AC) Total
_— - Remuneration
. irector's . onthly
Meeting Monthly. annual Meeting Remunera Non- (BOD+AC)
Allowance | Remuneration . Allowance . monetary
gratuity tion 2024
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
(Baht)
(Baht) (Baht) (Baht) (Baht) (Baht)

5. Mr. Sunyaluck Member of the 200,000 240,000 231,313 160,000 120,000 None 951,313
Chaikajornwat Audit

Committee+

Independent

Director
6. Miss Suwimon Non-Executive 200,000 240,000 231,313 - - None 671,313
Jhungjotikapisit Director
7. Miss Boosaba Director / - - 231,313 - - None 231,313
Daorueng Executive

Director
8. Mr. Phawit Director / - - 231,313 - - None 231,313
Chitrakorn Executive

Director
9. Mr. Fahmai Director / - - 208,182 - - None 208,182
Damrongchaitham Executive

Director
Mr. Suvit Member of the 20,000 80,000 23,131 60,000 40,000 None 223,131
Mapaisansin’’ Audit

Committee+

Independent

Director

Total Remuneration (Baht) 1,200,000 1,800,000 2,290,000 640,000 720,000 None 6,650,000

Note: Additional Information and Changes During the Year 2024**

1" Mr. Suvit Mapaisansin completed his term as a Director and a member of the Audit Committee, in accordance with
the resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. His tenure ended following the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, effective April 29, 2024. Mr. Suvit will receive monthly compensation for a period

of four months (January - April 2024).

2 Mr. Thana Thienachariya was appointed as a Director and a member of the Audit Committee in accordance with
the resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, effective April 29, 2024. Mr. Thana will receive
monthly compensation for a period of eight months (May - December 2024).

Required Resolution:

According to Section 90 of the Public Act, a resolution under this agenda can be passed
with a vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the total votes of the shareholders attending the meeting.

Agenda 7 To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the

ear 2025.

Pursuant to the Public Act, shareholders are responsible for the appointment of the
Company’s auditors and its annual audit fee. Under the Notice of the Capital Market Board No. Tor Chor.
75/2561 (No.14) Re: Rules, conditions, and procedures for information disclosure relating to the financial
condition and operating results of issuing companies on “Auditor Rotation” whose key points can be
summarized as follows: “Listed companies must ensure the rotation of its auditor. In case the auditor has
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reviewed and/or audited and commented on the financial statements of the Company for seven
consecutive accounting periods, whether consecutive or not, the company will be able to appoint the
above auditor at least after the end of the next five accounting periods.”

For the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, after due consideration by the
Board, with a consent from the Audit Committee, it was deemed appropriate to re-elect EY Office Limited
(“EY”), the Company’s auditor since 1995 (30 years) and is certified by the Office of Securities and
Exchange Commission, as the auditor of the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025.
That was because of their excellent working standard, independence and satisfied performance during the
past years. The Meeting was proposed to appoint any one of the individuals below to be responsible for
reviewing, audit, and provide an opinion on the financial statements of the Company:

The Company’s Auditors:

1. Mrs. Poonnard Paocharoen C.P.A. Registration No. 5238, or
(certified in the Company’s financial statements
in 2024 (1 year))

2. Ms. Kosum Cha-em C.P.A. Registration No. 6011, or
(never certify in the Company’s financial
statements)

3.Ms.Vilailak Laohasrisakul C.P.A. Registration No. 6140
(never certify in the Company’s financial
statements)

In the event that the aforementioned auditors are unable to perform their duties, EY will
replace the person with another auditor from its firm to conduct the audit works and give an opinion on the
financial statements of the Company. The auditors who certify the financial statements have no
relationship in any circumstances and have neither conflict of interest with the Company and its
subsidiaries nor the management, major shareholders or any related persons of the aforementioned.
Profiles and related information of the nominated auditors as the auditors of the Company for the year
2025 are delivered to the Company’s shareholders together with this invitation to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders according to Enclosure 4.1-4.3.

In addition, EY's auditor who is the auditor of the subsidiary under the same auditing firm
are as follows:
The Company’s subsidiaries’ Auditors:

1. Mrs. Poonnard Paocharoen C.P.A. Registration No. 5238, or
(certified in the Company’s financial statements
in 2024 (1 year))

2. Ms. Kosum Cha-em C.P.A. Registration No. 6011, or
(never certify in the Company’s financial
statements)
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3.Ms.Vilailak Laohasrisakul C.P.A. Registration No. 6140
(never certify in the Company’s financial
statements)

In this regard, the company has subsidiaries, both using the same auditor as the Company
and using other auditors. The Board of Directors will supervise that the financial statements can be
prepared in a timely manner according to the law.

The Audit Fee

The Board with the consent from the Audit Committee considered and deemed it
appropriate to propose to the Meeting to approve audit fees for the year 2025 of GMM Grammy Plc. At the
amount of Baht 2,490,000 and no other service fees (Non-audit services fee) , which is Baht 210,000 more
than the previous year, representing approximately 9.2%, (This amount excludes additional audit fees
which may incur from future business restructuring the merger or expansion / change of the company's
business in the future or the effect of special audit (Change policy / accounting standards)) The Audit
Committee and the Board opined that the amount was appropriate and competitive to those of other audit
firms proposed to the Company.

In the previous year 2024, the Company will receive tax advisory services in the amount of
Baht 200,000.

The audit fee of the Company could be summarized as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Company 2025 Audit fee and Change | Change 2024
Non-audit services o Audit fee and Non-audit
% .
fee (Proposed) services fee
GMM Grammy Plc. 2,490,000 210,000 9.2% 2,280,000
Non-audit service fee Tsisd (200,000) | (100%) 200,000

e In 2024, the Company utilized other services from EY totaling Baht 4,386,065, divided into
consulting services related to the sale of GMM Music shares to strategic investors for Baht
4,076,000, and accounting and tax advisory services totaling Baht 310,065.

¢ In 2025, the Company extended the service period for tax advisory services for Non-assurance
services (NAS) from the original contract end date of March 14, 2025, by another year, to end on
March 14, 2026, due to remaining service hours of 20 hours. This contract extension did not
incur any additional costs.

e The 2025 audit fees proposed above do not include potential increases in audit fees for the
Company due to mergers and acquisitions or the expansion/change of the Group's business in
the future, or impacts from special audits (changes in accounting policies/standards).

o For other subsidiaries that do not use the same auditor as the Company, the Board of Directors
will ensure that financial statements can be prepared within the stipulated time frame.
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Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be
passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 8 Other matters (If any)

The Board deemed it appropriate to include this agenda to be in accordance with Section
105 of the Public Act stating that shareholders holding not less than one-third of the total number of shares
sold, may request the meeting to consider any matter other than those specified in the meeting notice, and
also for shareholders to ask any questions or provide any opinions (if any) and/or so that the Board shall
answer or give an explanation to shareholders. Also, in case there were shareholders sent their inquiries
or comments in advance.

However, according to the Principles of Corporate Governance of Listed Company issued
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) and AGM Checklist of Thai Investors Association, it is not
recommended to add any other agendas that are not specified in the invitation letter to the Meeting for
approval or vote casting.

Additional Facts on the Meeting Agenda

In order to comply with the Company’s Good Corporate Governance Policy, the Company
has invited all shareholders to propose agenda for the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via
the Company’s website at www.gmmgrammy.com from September 4, 2024 to December 4, 2024.

However, there was no shareholder propose any agenda to the Company. The Board, therefore, deemed
it appropriate to set the agendas for the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders as appears in this
Invitation Letter.
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GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Financial Highlights

Consolidated (Unit : Million Baht)

2024 2023 2022

Statement of Income Statement (Million Baht)

Total revenues 6,237.3 5,988.2 5,319.7
Revenue from sales and services 6,165.4 5,931.4 5,221.6
Total costs 3,651.2 3,632.7 3,179.7
Gross profit 2,514.2 2,298.7 2,041.9
Earnings (loss) before Non-controlling interest of the subsidiaries 272.2 (126.5) 182.3
Net earnings (loss) for the year-Equity holders of the Company 195.6 (132.6) 166.4
Dividend paid - - -

Statement of Financial Position (Million Baht)

Total assets 8,243.7 6,241.2 6,132.9
Total liabilities 3,593.7 4,718.0 4,494.8
Non-controlling interest of the subsidiaries 264.0 117.3 107.1
Equity attributable to the Company's shareholders 4,386.0 1,406.0 1,631.0
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ( Million shares) 819.9 819.9 819.9

Per Share Data (Baht per Share)

Net earning (loss) per share 0.24 (0.16) 0.20
Dividend paid per share 0.00 0.00 0.00
Book value per share 5.35 1.71 1.87

Ratios (%)

Net profit (loss) margins 3.14% (2.21%) 3.13%
Return on equity (ROE) 6.75% (9.03%) 11.49%
Return on assets (ROA) 2.70% (2.14%) 2.98%

2022: Proposal for the omission of dividends payment for the 2022 operational results

According to the separate financial statement, the Company had the 2022 operational results recorded the net profit of Baht 136
million and retained earnings of Baht 211 million, respectively. So, the 2023 AGM held on April 28, 2023 resolved to approve the
omission of dividend payment for the operational results of 2022. This is to allow the company having working capital in the company's
business.

2023: Proposal for the omission of dividends payment for the 2023 operational results

According to the separate financial statement, the Company had the 2023 operational results recorded the net profit of Baht 362 million
and retained earnings of Baht 555 million, respectively, in the separate financial statements, in order. So, the 2024 AGM held on April
29, 2024 resolved to approve the omission of dividend payment for the operational results of 2023. This is to allow the company having
working capital in the company's business.

2024: Proposal for the omission of dividends payment for the 2024 operational results

According to the separate financial statement, the Company had the 2024 operational results recorded the net profit of Baht 2,661
million and retained earnings of Baht 3,163 million, respectively, in the separate financial statements, in order. Which indicates a
substantial profit, but the Company has utilized the majority of these funds to repay all outstanding loans, as well as to invest in
additional growth businesses, and to ensure the Company has sufficient working capital for its operations. Therefore, the Board of
Directors' Meeting No.1/2025 held on February 26, 2025, resolved to propose that the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 29, 2025 to consider and approve the omission of dividend payment from the operating results for the year 2024 to
the company's shareholders.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GMM Grammy Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information, and have also audited the separate financial statements of GMM Grammy Public

Company Limited for the same period (collectively “the financial statements”).

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, and of

GMM Grammy Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2024, their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the
Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are
relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. | believe that

the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Emphasis of Matters

| draw attention to the following matters.

a) As disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements, the sale of ordinary shares of GMM Music

b)

Public Company Limited ("GMM Music"), a subsidiary, to strategic investors (TENCENT and
Warner Music Group) are of significant value of the transaction to the financial statements.
Additionally, the Company has obligations under the price protection agreement according to
the terms and conditions set forth in the contracts related to the transaction of selling GMM
Music's ordinary shares to the buyer groups and to ensure that the purchase price for the
buyer groups is equitable with other individuals in the event that GMM Music offers its shares
to the public for the first time. The Company assesses that it has the right to control the
conditions of the public offering of shares according to its own discretion. This will help the
Company to reduce the risk of having to compensate the difference to the group of buyers by
carefully managing and planning the share offering to ensure that the public offering price is
appropriated. The Company’s management assesses that the risk from this term of
agreement is low, therefore, the management has not yet recorded an estimate of the liability

for the price difference compensation.

As disclosed in Note 14 and 15 to the financial statements regarding the acquisition of
ordinary shares in The One Enterprise Public Company Limited by the Company and the
acquisition of ordinary shares in Joox Thailand (Hong Kong) Limited by GMM Tomorrow
Company Limited (a subsidiary), which resulted from the sale of ordinary shares of GMM
Music Public Company Limited to the TENCENT group, the Group is currently assessing the
fair value the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. The
measurement is to be completed within a period of 1 year from the acquisition date in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standard No. 3 Business Combinations which the
Group applies by analogy.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance

in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and

| do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit opinion on -

the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described below.

Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue is significant to the financial statements and directly affects its operating
results, to which users of financial statements pay attention. The Group has numerous types of
revenue and it is derived through various channels, under agreements with a large number of
customers that contain a variety of conditions, pertaining to matters such as sales promotions and '
discounts. In addition, changes in consumer behavior and industry trends have directly affected
the competitive environment in media and entertainment industry. There are therefore risks with

respect to the amount and timing of revenue recognition.
| have examined the revenue recognition of the Group by

e Assessing and testing the Group’s IT system and its internal controls with respect to the
revenue cycle by making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an understanding of the

controls and selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed controls.

e Applying a sampling method to select sales and service agreements to assess whether
revenue recognition was consistent with the conditions of the relevant agreement, and

whether it was in compliance with the Group’s policy.

¢ On asampling basis, examining supporting documents for sales and service transactions

occurring during the year and near the end of the accounting period.
e Reviewing credit notes that the Group issued after the period-end.

e Performing analytical procedures on disaggregated data to detect possible irregularities in
sales transactions throughout the period, particularly for accounting entries made through

journal vouchers.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements

and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit '
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that | identify during my audit.
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| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or |
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Pk P

Poonnard Paocharoen
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5238

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 26 February 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2024

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Advance payments

Other current financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets

Other non-current financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in joint ventures
Investments in associates
Loans to related parties
Leasehold improvement and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets

Cost of spectrum license
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Note

10
11

12
13
14
15

16
24
17
18
30
19

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
843,410,508 672,857,234 194,477,582 141,489,996
970,859,943 1,068,575,612 104,257,303 176,832,032
271,341,177 223,501,775 5,264,638 3,177,404

33,924,477 49,807,358 6,105,314 3,7_88,492

15,127,360 19,763,577 80,279 1,040,322
189,509,634 266,133,600 189,509,634 266,133,600

72,165,094 215,898,275 12,682,433 44,529,825

2,396,338,193 2,516,537,431 512,377,183 636,991,671
5,519,369 5,781,256 5,519,369 5,531,306

- - 1,890,901,309 1,080,661,324
1,841,253,967 968,049,254 2,082,115,756 1,205,097,560
1,093,469,998 146,880,076 194,341,357 194,341,357
- - 534,220 -

234,312,276 147,469,295 12,613,142 9,661,789
579,089,313 702,379,621 166,577,815 142,519,974
1,441,713,806 1,062,118,415 35,941,447 34,375,651
249,170,480 307,072,953 - -
216,106,657 174,992,874 183,050,379 156,084,997
186,737,209 209,967,189 92,949,908 113,089,766
5,847,373,075 3,724,710,933 4,664,544,702 2,941,363,724

8,243,711,268

6,241,248,364

5,176,921,885

3,578,355,395

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2024

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities

Short-term loan from bank

Trade and other payables

Unearned income

Short-term loans from related parties
Current portion of long-term loan
Current portion of lease liabilities
Income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loan - net of current portion
Lease liabilities - net of current portion

Deferred tax liabilities

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity

Share capital

Registered

819,949,729 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each

Issued and fully paid

819,949,729 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each

Paid-in capital

Share premium
Surplus on share-based payment
Retained earnings

Appropriated - statutory reserve

Unappropriated

Other components of shareholders' equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Note

20
21

23

24

22

23

24

30
25

26

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023

380,000,000 673,000,000 - -
1,468,216,391 1,709,789,256 131,227,965 202,299,652
708,560,209 263,642,789 3,274,638 2,992,570

- - 236,800,000 279,300,000

- 133,301,282 - 133,301,282

66,090,307 63,735,644 19,409,925 13,951,241
37,603,647 36,065,699 - -
124,600,157 66,163,871 22,538,508 16,484,479
2,785,070,711 2,945,698,541 413,251,036 648,329,224
- 857,853,261 - 857,853,261

579,224,935 681,484,624 164,581,336 137,746,001
101,857 101,857 101,857 101,857
194,230,818 189,801,459 40,800,879 39,511,808
35,044,416 43,084,416 194,416 194,416
808,602,026 1,772,325,617 205,678,488 1,035,407,343
3,693,672,737 4,718,024,158 618,929,524 1,683,736,567
819,949,729 819,949,729 819,949,729 819,949,729
819,949,729 819,949,729 819,949,729 819,949,729
492,987,095 492,987,095 492,987,095 492,987,095
8,669,584 8,669,584 - -
81,994,973 27,074,587 81,994,973 27,Q74,587
238,052,933 100,897,040 3,163,217,849 554,756,862
2,744,380,059 (43,609,637) (157,285) (149,445)

4,386,034,373
264,004,158

1,405,968,398
117,255,808

4,557,992,361

1,894,618,828

4,650,038,531

1,623,224,206

4,557,992,361

1,894,618,828

8,243,711,268

6,241,248,364

5,176,921,885

3,578,355,395

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Directors



GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Note

Revenues
Sales of goods 27
Service income 27
Revenues from copyrights 27
Dividend income 10, 13, 14
Gain from sales of investment in subsidiaries 13
Other income
Total revenues
Expenses
Cost of sales and services
Selling, distribution and servicing expenses
Administrative expenses
Expected credit loss of loans to related parties (reversal) 6
Loss on fair value in other current financial assets 10
Loss on impairment of investments in subsidiaries 13
Total expenses
Operating profit (loss)
Share of profit from investments in joint ventures 14
Share of profit from investments in associates 15
Finance income
Finance cost 28
Profit (loss) before income tax income (expenses)
Income tax income (expenses) 30
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operation
Profit for the year from discontinued operations

- net of income tax 32
Profit (loss) for the year
Profit (loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

Profit for the year from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 31

Profit (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023

1,393,251,982 1,577,234,343 - 6,013,966

3,230,605,188 2,612,830,688 167,251,786 133,990,003

1,541,547,660 1,741,321,414 43,299,929 9,774,540

18,460,855 8,393,200 222,299,220 273,841,915

- . 2,815,396,241 -

53,447,136 48,468,831 24,117,570 3,680,914

6,237,312,821 5,088,248,476 3,272,364,746 427,301,338

3,651,159,929 3,632,663,909 137,982,505 161,542,915

468,950,909 499,804,872 13,517,827 294,518

1,711,307,564 1,653,027,533 498,145,188 534,039,667

- - (78,059,750) (51,029,875)

14,412,749 243,358,893 14,412,749 243,358,893

- - - 19,514,937

5,845,831,151 6,028,855,207 585,998,519 897,721,055

391,481,670 (40,606,731)  2,686,366,227 (470,419,717)
126,826,711 120,599,594 - -
4,945,445 2,143 556 . =
5,537,810 2,607,914 17,547,489 19,439,623
(127,166,965) (121,176,464) (70,882,446) (71,596,118)
401,624,671 (36,432,131)  2,633,031,270 (522,576,212)
(129,383,329) (90,083,483) 27,638,934 159,419,264
272,241,342 (126,515,614) _ 2,660,670,204 (363,156,948)
i . - 724,958,226
272,241,342 (126,515,614)  2,660,670,204 361,801,278
195,570,915 (132,567,060)  2,660,670,204 (363,156,948)
- - - 724,958,226
195,570,915 (132,567,060) _ 2,660,670,204 361,801,278
76,670,427 6,051,446
272,241,342 (126,515,614)
0.24 (0.16) 3.24 (0.44)
- - - 0.88
0.24 (0.16) 3.24 0.44




GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Z
o
=3
(o]

Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements
in foreign currency - net of income tax
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial gain - net of income tax 25
Loss on changes in value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
- net of income tax
Share of actuarial loss of joint ventures - net of income tax
Share of actuarial loss of associates - net of income tax
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year from
continuing operations

Total comprehensive income for the year from
discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

Profit for the year from continuing operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
272,241,342 (126,515,614)  2,660,670,204 (363,156,948)
61,758 309,598 - -
61,758 309,598 : :
3,837,706 - 2,711,169 ;
(7,840) (41,760) (7,840) (41,760)
(6,933,485) . ; ;
(398,857) : ; :
(3,502,476) (41,760) 2,703,329 (41,760)
(3,440,718) 267,838 2,703,329 (41,760)
268,800,624 (126,247,776)  2,663,373,533 (363,198,708)
- - : 724,958,226
268,800,624 (126,247,776)  2,663,373,533 361,759,518
193,738,114 (132,209.222)  2,663,373,533 (363,198,708)
. : : 724,958,226
193,738,114 (132,200,222)  2,663,373,533 361,759,518
75,062,510 6,051,446
268,800,624 (126,247,776)
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GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinued operations (Note 32)
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation
Bad debts and allowance for expected credit losses (reversal)
Loss on impairment of financial assets
Reversal of reduction of cost of inventory to net realisable value
Provision for sales returns (reversal)
Loss on fair value adjustments of other financial assets
Gain from sales of other long-term investment
Gain from sales of investment in subsidiary
Cash received from returning funds and liquidation in subsidiary
Gain from sales of other financial asset
Profit from business transfer
Loss on impairment of investments in subsidiary (reversal)
Reversal of expected credit loss on loans to related parties
Gain on disposal of equipments
Loss on write-off of intangible assets
Reversal of impairment of intangible assets
Gain from lease modification and cancellation
Dividend income
Share of profit from investments in joint ventures
Share of profit from investments in associates
Share-based payment
Long-term employee benefit expenses
Interest income
Interest expenses
Profit (loss) from operating activities before changes

in operating assets and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
401,624,671 (36,432,131)  2,633,031,270 (522,576,212)
- - . 904,883,684
367,911,420 407,074,948 50,678,300 117,233,045
(115,287,116) (18,050,957) 16,522,323 (5,866,773)
77,452,390 7,665,876 . 2,552,020
(31,446,732) (20,888,479) - (118,031,307)
28,985,527 (14,838,674) - (35,941,947)
14,412,749 243,358,893 14,412,749 243,358,893
(24,840) = . -
. - (2,815,396,241) -
- . (14,641,372) .
(353,674) - (353,674) =
- = . (521,086,146)
- . (15,300,000) 19,514,937
- - (62,759,750) (51,029,875)
(2,194,874) (13,514,499) (1,512,094) (6,714,349)
20,618,410 23,924,918 20,616,058 1,474,413
(20,616,058) . (20,616,058) -
(5,457,606) (3,540,796) - (225,713)
(18,460,855) (8,393,200) (222,299,220) (285,840,955)
(126,826,711) (120,599,594) - -
(4,945,445) (2,143,556) i -
. 8,669,584 - -
24,158,727 25,570,983 5,801,699 12,150,858
(5,537,810) (2,607,914) (17,547,489) (19,502,106)
127,166,965 121,176,464 70,882,446 96,136,472

731,179,138 596,431,866 (358,481,053)

(169,511,061)



GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of cash flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Advance payments
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unearned income
Other current liabilities
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Other non-current liabilities
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for income tax
Cash received from income tax refund
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of equipments
Cash paid for aquisition and creation of intangible assets
Increase in loans to related parties
Net cash received from business transfer
Cash paid to purchase additional investments in subsidiary
Cash received from disposal of investment in subsidiary
Cash received from returning funds and liquidation in subsidiary
Cash paid to purchase investment in joint ventures
Cash paid to purchase investment in associate
Cash received from disposal of other current financial assets
Cash received from returning funds and liquidation
in other non-current financial assets
Cash received from returning funds and liquidation in joint venture
Dividend received from other current financial assets
Dividend received from subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Cash received from disposal of equipment and right-of-use assets
Cash received from disposal of intangible assets
Interest income

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

2024

158,436,780
(16,392,670)
15,882,881

4,794,807
171,785,912
(47,274,785)

2023

7,370,276
87,922,838
(15,036,080)
23,717,972
(30,075,041)
(73,723,885)

Separate financial statements

2024

97,629,380
(2,087,234)
(2,316,822)
960,043
39,648,922
(30,279,200)

2023

18,593,078
147,770,631
.148,109
30,301,994
37,618,180
(44,538,528)

(250,015,726) 173,425,322 (66,854,295) (2,253,074)
444,917,420 (178,036,686) 282,068 55,935,103
5,991,159 (27,116,198) 6,054,029 (158,117,655)
(11,067,716) (23,334,207) (2,184,661) (21,417,467)
(8,040,000) (8,040,000) - -
1,200,197,200 533,506,177 (317,628,823) (105,470,690)

(127,581,590)

(116,659,532)

(71,591,125)

(95,850,679)

(197,445,075) (106,578,755) (7,803,757) (43,478,990)
70,504,765 53,963,481 50,419,058 26,197,512
945,675,300 364,231,371 (346,604 ,647) (218,602,847)
(132,759,170) (54,303,972) (8,976,738) (26,591,250)
(545,844,739) (598,860,437) (21,544,889) (319,938,907)
- " 62,225,530 51,029,875

. i - 420,000,000

- - (1,003,661) (799,999,980)

. - 2,018,834,996 -

- - 17,266,293 :

(898,292,751)
(25,000,000)
62,567,028

274,790
482,595
18,460,855
146,288,719
2,202,623

5,637,757

(25,487,250)

8,393,200
127,098,719
16,240,911

2,624,603

(877,018,196)

62,567,028

18,460,855
162,023,629
1,515,857

17,785,199

(25,487,250)

8,393,200
302,247,416
6,757,717
22,425,084
17,322,255

(1,366,082,293)

(524,294,226)

1,452,135,903

(343,841,840)



GMM Grammy Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of cash flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans from bank

Increase (decrease) in loans from related parties

Cash received from long-term loans

Front-end fee paid

Early loan redemption fee paid

Repayment of long-term loans

Repayment of lease liabilities

Cash received from non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
from investments in subsidiaries

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of subsidiaries

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in translation adjustments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows information:
Non-cash transactions:

Increase in assets from lease agreements

Decrease in right-of-use assets from modification of lease agreement

Fixed assets purchased which payment has yet to be made
Intangible assets purchased which payment has yet to be made
Repayment of loan by offsetting liability

Accrued of employee benefits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023

(293,000,000) 193,000,000 . 68,000,000
- (185,620,466) (42,500,000) 294,500,000

. 680,000,000 . 680,000,000

. (4,000,000) - (4,000,000)

- (3,800,000) - (3,800,000)
(992,051,282) (556,698,719) (992,051,282) (556,698,719)
(64,838 ,447) (57,121,685) (17,992,388) (29,292,793)
1,992,873,122 2,692,000 - .
(47,526,554) (2,144) - -
595,456,839 68,448,986 _ (1,052,543,670) 448,708,488
(4,496,572) 309,598 - .
170,553,274 (91,304,271) 52,987,586 (113,736,199)
672,857,234 764,161,505 141,489,996 255,226,195
843,410,508 672,857,234 194,477,582 141,489,996
88,059,975 166,584,394 50,286,406 16,463,250
117,668,950 . . ;
3,749,262 6,835,314 - -
422,916 - 145,092 .

- - - 296,000,000

16,112,799 10,116,128 1,123,667 2,184,661



(For consideration of Agenda 5) G”MM, Enclosure No.3.1

GRAMMY
Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2025
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Name - Surname - Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham
Age - 38 years

Nationality - Thai

Appointment Date of Directorship - 12 May 2017

Period of Directorship * - 7years 11 months

(until the date of AGM)

10years 11 months
(Induding the proposed agenda for this time)

Type of Director to be Appointed - Director (Executive Director)

Education

Bachelor of Arts in Communication Faculty of Annenberg School for Communication, University
of Southern California, USA

Training Program

Program Class Year Organized by

Director Accreditation Program (DAP)| 188 2021 Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)

Position in the Company

Period Position

14 May 2023 - Present (Acting) Chief Investment Officer

27 Feb 2018 - Present Member of the Risk Management
Committee

12 May 2017 - Present Director (Authorized Director)

27 Feb 2017 - Present Member of the Group Executive
Committee

22 Aug 2011 - Present Member of Investment Committee

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o Listed Company: - company

Period Position Company

-None- -None- -None-

e Non-Listed Company: 14 companies

Period Position Company

27 Dec 2024 - Present Director (Authorized Director) GMM ASIA Co.,Ltd.
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Enclosure No.3.1

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2025
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.

GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Period

Position

Company

3 Dec 2024 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM X ONE Co.,Ltd.

7 Aug 2024 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM Gilobal Co.,Ltd.

13 Jun 2024 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

G&LDH Co.,Ltd.

11 Mar 2024 - Present

Director (Authorized Director) /
Executive Director / Chief Marketing
Officer

GMM Music Plc. (Transform to public
company as of March 11, 2024)

24 Jan 2024 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

TNY Entertainment and Technology
Co.,Ltd.

4 Jul 2023 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

BlackGem Co., Ltd. (Formerly GR
Vocal Studio Co., Ltd. - registered for
a name change on March 1, 2024)

21 May 2021 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

YGMM Co., Ltd.

13 Aug 2020 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Fah Damrongchaitham Co., Ltd.

Aug 2012 - Present

Director

U-Star (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

2011 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Geurtfah Co., Ltd.

2011 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Ruamfah Co., Ltd.

2009 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Ruam Fah Deaw Gun Co., Ltd.

13 Sep 2007 - Present

Director and Secretary

Damrongchaitham Foundation

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period

Position

‘ Company

Listed Companies

3 May 2021 - 22 Feb 2024

Director (Authorized Director) /
Member of Executive Committee

The ONE Enterprise Plc.

15 May 2019-13 Nov 2023

Chief Strategic Officer-Music 1

GMM Grammy Plc.

1 Dec 2016 - 14 May 2019

Chief Sale Officer-GMM Music

GMM Grammy Plc.

9 Dec 2011 - 12 May 2017

Member of Risk Management
Committee

GMM Grammy Plc.

Oct 2014 - 30 Nov 2016

Managing Director - Aratist

GMM Grammy Plc.

16 Jun 2010 - 30 Sep 2014

Managing Director,
Sanamluang Music

GMM Grammy Plc.
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Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2025
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Period

Position

Company

2011 - Dec 2012

Co-Chief Operation Officer (Co-
CO0O0)

GMM Grammy Plc.

9 Dec 2011 - Mar 2012

Member of the Corporate
Governance and Ethics Committee

GMM Grammy Plc.

28 Jul 2008 - 15 Jun 2010

Marketing Officer

GMM Grammy Plc.

Other Companies

Jan 2016 - 7 Oct 2024

Director (Authorized Director)

Suea Tid Peak Krub Co., Ltd.
(Deregistered on October 7, 2024,
and is in the process of liquidation.)

18 May 2021 - 2 Jul 2024

Director

GDH559 Co.,Ltd.

6 Oct 2023 - 11 Mar 2024

Member of the Executive Committee

GMM Music Co., Ltd.
(Transform to public company as
11 Mar 2024)

1 Sep 2023 - 11 Mar 2024

Chief Marketing Officer

GMM Music Co., Ltd.
(Transform to public company as
11 Mar 2024)

7 Apr 2023 - 11 Mar 2024

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM Music Co., Ltd.
(Transform to public company as
11 Mar 2024)

Oct 2012 - 29 Feb 2024

Managing Director

Z Trading Co., Ltd.

31 May 2017 - 2 May 2021

Director (Authorized Director) /
Executive Director

The ONE Enterprise Co., Ltd.
(Transform to public company as 3
May 2021)

11 Apr 2019 - 20 Mar 2020

Director

GMP Foods Co., Ltd.

7 Dec 2017 - 30 Nov 2020

Director

GMM Channel Holding Co., Ltd.

Mar 2017 - 20 May 2020

Director (Authorized Director)

Z Trading Co., Ltd.

18 Apr 2018 - 18 May 2020

Director (Authorized Director)

FAN TV Co., Ltd.

Sep 2019 - 4 Dec 2019

Director (Authorized Director)

O-Shopping Co., Ltd. (Formerly GMM
CJ O-Shopping Co., Ltd.)

24 Aug 2018 - 14 Mar 2019

Director

Proud Project One Co., Ltd.

18 Apr 2018 - 5 Mar 2019

Director

Digistream Co., Ltd.

20 Apr 2018 - 24 Sep 2018

Director (Authorized Director)

Change2561 Co., Ltd.

12 Jan 2018 - 24 Sep 2018

Director (Authorized Director)

A-Time Media Co., Ltd.

12 Jan 2018 - 24 Sep 2018

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM TV Co., Ltd.

12 Jan 2018 - 20 Sep 2018

Director

GMM Channel Co., Ltd.
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(For consideration of Agenda 5) G”MM, Enclosure No.3.1

GRAMMY
Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2025
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Period Position Company
6 Dec 2017 - 20 Sep 2018 | Director (Authorized Director) GMM Media Plc.
Apr 2013 - 5 May 2017 Director (Authorized Director) 3-RD Co., Ltd.

e Other company that may cause any conflict of interest to the Company: - None -

Area of expertise Have Expertise, Knowledge and Experience about the business of the
Company as well, Business administration, Organization and Human
resource management, Business Strategy and Marketing

Percentage of Share Holding as | Direct :-None -
of 20 March 2025

(According to Section 59 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.)

Indirect :

(1) 426,774,344 Shares (52,05%) via Fah Damrongchaitham Co., Ltd.
(Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham having 0.25 voting rights in Fah
Damrongchaitham Co., Ltd. and he is authorized director in Fah
Damrongchaitham Co., Ltd)

(2) 453,800 Shares (0.06%) via Geurtfah Co., Ltd. (Mr. Fahmai
Damrongchaitham is the Director and Authorized Director in
Geurtfah Co.,Ltd., hold 25% and all his 3 sibling hold 75%shares in
Geurtfah Co.,Ltd.)

Of the total issued shares of 819,949,729 shares

Being the son of Mr. Paiboon Damrongchaitham who is Chairman of the

Executive Related Relationship Board and Major shareholder (Indirect)

Legal Disputes - None -
Criteria and Recruitment The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Procedure Remuneration Committee to propose the reappointment of Mr. Fahmai

Damrongchaitham as a director for another term. This is in accordance
with the criteria and recruitment process of the company.
.(As being disclosed in the 2024 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One report)
under the Heading of Corporate Governance> Nomination and
Appointment of Directors and Executives (Page. 129-130))

Meeting Attendance in 2024 e The Shareholder Meeting in 2024: Attended 2 / 2 times
e The Board of Directors' Meeting: Attended 9/ 10 times
o The Group Executive Committee’s Meeting: Attended 10/ 13 times

o The Risk Management Committee’s Meeting: Attended 1/ 1 times
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GRAMMY
Profile of the directors of the proposed committee member for appointment
as a company director for the year 2025
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Name - Surname - Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong

Age - 69 years

Nationality - Thai

Date of propose for appointmentas - The propose for the appointment to
a director the position of independent director

succeeding Dr. Naris Chaiyasoot
was presented at the shareholders'
meeting on April 29, 2025.

Type of Director to be Appointed - Independent Director

Education

Doctor of Philosophy Program in Innovation and Industrial Management, College of Innovation
and Industrial Management, King Mongkut’s Institute of Technology Ladkrabang. (2023)

Master Degree of Business Administration (International Monetary Fund), University of Southern
California, USA. (1982)

Bachelor Degree of Marketing and Management, Jacksonville University, USA. (1978)

Training Program

Program Class | Year Organized by
High Performance Board 2558 IMD International Switzerland
Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)| 34 2557 Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)
Successful Formulation & Execution 3 2552 . . .
of Strategy (SFE) Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)
Role of the Compensation Committee| 7 2551 Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
(RCC)
Audit Committee Program (ACP) 5 2548 Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)
Director Certification Program (DCP) [ 16 2545 Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Position in the Company: -None-

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o Listed Company: 1 companies

Period Position Company

2015 - present Independent Director, | Sahathai Terminal Public Company Limited
Audit Committee
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GRAMMY
Profile of the directors of the proposed committee member for appointment
as a company director for the year 2025
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

e  Non-Listed Company: 6 companies

Period

Position

Company

2014 - Present

Director and Chairman
of the Executive
Committee

Thaiyarnyon Intersales Co., Ltd.

2005 - Present

Director and Chairman
of the Executive

Thaiyarnyon Co., Ltd.

Committee
2005 - Present Director National Press Council of Thailand
2005 - Present Director The Queen’s Gallery
2005 - Present Director Bangkok bank foundation
2012 - Present Director Siam University Council

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period Position Company
Listed Companies
2013 -2016 Chairman of the Board / Advanced Info Service Public Company
Chairman of the Nomination Limited
and Remuneration
Committee and Executive
Director InTouch Holdings Public Company
Limited
2001 -2013 Director and Audit InTouch Holdings Public Company
Committee Limited
2002 - 2004 Director Airports of Thailand Public Company
Limited

Other Companies

2005 - 2020 Independent Director, Audit Sahathai Steel Pipe Public Company
Committee Limited

2013-2014 Director Thailand-China Business Council

1995 -2010 Director German-Thai Chamber of Commerce

2001 - 2008 Vice President Yontrakit Group.

2005 - 2006 Chairman of the Board Government Pharmaceutical Organization

1996 - 1997 Director Expressway Authority of Thailand

e Other company that may cause any conflict of interest to the Company':

- None -

Enclosure No. 3.2
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Profile of the directors of the proposed committee member for appointment
as a company director for the year 2025
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

¢ Relationship in the company/major shareholder/subsidiary/associated company or other

conflicted business entity in present or during the past 2 years:

Type of Relationship Status / Explanation
1. Being a director who takes part in the management of the company, - No -
employee, staff member, or advisor receiving a regular salary.
2. Being a professional service provider. (i.e., auditor or legal advisor) - No -
3. Having business relationship. (i.e., buy-sell materials/products/services or - None -
financial support)

Area of expertise

Accounting & Finance, Marketing Strategy, Organization & Human

Resources Management , Good Corporate Governance (CQ),
Leaders

Percentage of Share Holding as | Direct :-None -

of 20 March 2025 Indirect : - None -

Executive Related Relationship - None -

Legal Disputes - None -

Criteria and Recruitment
Procedure

The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to propose the appointment of Mr. Vithit
Leenutaphong as an independent director to replace Dr. Naris
Chaiyasoot, whose term is set to expire in the year 2025 and who has
expressed no intention for reappointment. Additionally, Mr. Vithit
Leenutaphong has qualifications as an independent director as
stipulated in the relevant laws by being able to give opinions
independently. This is in accordance with the criteria and recruitment
process of the Company. (as being disclosed in the 2024 Annual Report
(56-1 One report) under the Heading of Corporate Governance>
6. Nomination and Fixing the Remuneration of the Directors and
Executives > Nomination and Appointment of Company Directors
(Page. 129-130))
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GRAMMY
Profile of the directors of the proposed committee member for appointment
as a company director for the year 2025
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Name - Surname - Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij

Age - 62 years

Nationality - Thai

Date of propose for appointmentas - The propose for the appointment to the
a director position of independent director

succeeding Mr. Chanitr Charnchainarong
was presented at the shareholders'
meeting on April 29, 2025.

Type of Director to be Appointed - Independent Director

Education

Master of Business Administration, Kasetsart University (1994).
Bachelor of Accounting (Accounting), Thammasat University (1984).

Training Program

Program Class | Year Organized by
The Role of the Board in IT 2020 Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
Governance
Director Certification Program (DCP) | 206 2015 Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)
CFOs Orientation Course for New The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)
IPOs
TLCA Executive Development 2 2008 The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)
Program
Executive Development Program 8 2012 Fiscal Policy Research

Institute Foundation, Kingdom of Thailand in
cooperation with
Maxwell School of Syracuse University

Advanced Management Program 2016 Personnel Management Association of
(AMP) 2 - People Management Thailand
Introduction to Energy Insurance and 1996 Sedgwick Energy & Marine Limited; United
Risk Management Kingdom
Program on the Modernization 1990 IATSS Forum, Japan

Process in Japan and Dynamism of
Japanese Society

Position in the Company: -None-

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o Listed Company: 0 companies

Period Position Company

None None None
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Profile of the directors of the proposed committee member for appointment
as a company director for the year 2025

GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

e  Non-Listed Company: 3 companies

Period

Position

Company

Mar 2024- Present

Audit and Evaluation
Committee

Ministry of Social Development and
Human Security

Apr 2023 - Present

Independent Director ,
Chairman of Audit
Committee and member of
the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Unique Plastic Industry Public Company
Limited

Feb 2022 - Present

The 434-45% Board of
Directors of the Savings
Cooperative and Chairman of
the 45" Investment
Subcommittee of the Savings
Cooperative

PTT Saving and Credit Cooperative,
Limited

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period

Position

Company

Listed Companies

Mar 2018 - Sep 2022

Executive Vice President

PTT Public Company Limited

Oct 2018 - Sep 2022

Senior Executive Vice
President, Corporate
Accounting & Finance (CFO)

IRPC Public Company Limited

Mar 2018 - Sep 2018

Executive Vice President,
Finance Management (CFO)

PTT Oil and Retail Business Public
Company Limited

2016-2018 Vice President, Group PTT Public Company Limited
Financial Planning,
2012-2013 Vice President, Investor PTT Public Company Limited

Relations

Other Companies

Mar 2021 - Sep 2022

VISTEC Finance and Budget
Sub-Committee

Vidyasirimedhi Institute of Science and
Technology (VISTEC)

Jul 2020 - Sep 2022 Director Mytex Polymers (Thailand) Company

Dec 2018 - Sep 2022 Director IRPC A&L Company Limited

Nov 2018 - Sep 2022 Director IPolymer Company Limited

Nov 2018 - Sep 2022 Director IRPC Oil Company Limited

Nov 2018 - Sep 2022 Director IRPC Polyol Company Limited

Nov 2018 - Sep 2022 Director WHA Industrial Estate Rayong Company
Limited

Oct 2018 - Sep 2022 Director UBE Chemicals (Asia) Public Company

Limited
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Profile of the directors of the proposed committee member for appointment
as a company director for the year 2025
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

Period Position Company
Oct 2018 - Sep 2022 Director IRPC Clean Power Company Limited
2013 - 2016 Managing Director PTT Regional Treasury Center Pte Ltd.
(Singapore)

e Other company that may cause any conflict of interest to the Company:

- None -

o Relationship in the company/major shareholder/subsidiary/associated company or other

conflicted business entity in present or during the past 2 years:

Type of Relationship Status / Explanation
1. Being a director who takes part in the management of the company, - No -
employee, staff member, or advisor receiving a regular salary.
2. Being a professional service provider. (i.e., auditor or legal advisor) - No -
3. Having business relationship. (i.e., buy-sell materials/products/services or - None -
financial support)

Area of expertise

Accounting & Finance, Organization & Human Resources
Management , Leaders

Percentage of Share Holding as

Direct :-None -

of 20 March 2025 Indirect : - None -
Executive Related Relationship | - None -
Legal Disputes - None -

Criteria and Recruitment
Procedure

The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to propose the appointment of Mrs. Nidcha
Jirametthanakij, as an independent director to replace Mr. Chanitr
Charnchainarong, whose term is set to expire in the year 2025 and who
has expressed no intention for reappointment. Additionally, Mrs. Nidcha
Jirametthanakij has qualifications as an independent director as
stipulated in the relevant laws by being able to give opinions
independently. This is in accordance with the criteria and recruitment
process of the Company. (as being disclosed in the 2024 Annual Report
(56-1 One report) under the Heading of Corporate Governance>
6. Nomination and Fixing the Remuneration of the Directors and
Executives > Nomination and Appointment of Company Directors
(Page. 129-130))
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Qualifications of the Independent Director
GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

The qualification of the Company’s independent director is in compliance with (equal to) the minimum
requirement of the Office of Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, which is in accordance with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board. The details are as followings:

1. Holds shares of not exceeding 1% of total voting shares of the Company, its parent company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons,
including shares held by related parties.

2. Is not or has not ever been an executive director, employee, staff, corporate advisor receiving
a regular salary, or a controlling person of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries,
its associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries, its major shareholders, or its
controlling persons unless the foregoing status has ended for more than 2 years prior to
being appointed as Independent Director. Such prohibitions exclude government officer or
advisor to any government agency who is major shareholder or controlling person of the
Company.

3. Is not a person related by blood or by law in terms of father, mother, spouse, sibling and
child, including spouse of the children, of other directors, management, major shareholders,
controlling persons, or persons to be nominated as directors, management or controlling
persons of the Company or its subsidiaries.

4. Is not or has not ever been an auditor of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries,
its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons, and is not a
significant shareholder, a controlling person, or a partner of an audit firm which employs
auditors of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its
major shareholders, or its controlling persons unless the foregoing relationship has ended for
more than 2 years prior to being appointed as Independent Director.

5. Has not or has not had a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons, in
the manner that may interfere with his/her independent judgement, or is not or has not ever
been a significant shareholder or a controlling person of any person having business
relationship with the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated
companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons unless the foregoing
relationship has ended for more than 2 years prior to being appointed as Independent
Director. The term “business relationship” aforementioned includes any normal business
transaction, rental or lease of immovable property, transaction relating to assets or services,
grant or receipt of financial assistance through receiving or extending loans, guarantee,
providing assets as collateral, including any other similar actions which result in the Company
or his counterparty being subject to indebtedness payable to the other party in the amount of
3% or more of the net tangible assets of the Company or Baht 20 million or more, whichever
is lower.

6. Is not or has not ever been any professional advisor including legal or financial advisor who
receives an annual service fee exceeding Baht 2 million from the Company, its parent
company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling
persons, and is not a significant shareholder, a controlling person, or a partner of the
professional advisor unless the foregoing relationship has ended for more than 2 years prior
to being appointed as Independent Director.
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GRAMMY

7. s not a director representing Board member of the Company’s, its major shareholders, or a
shareholder who is related to the Company’s major shareholders.

8. Does not own/run any business similar to or material competing with the Company or its
subsidiaries, or not being a significant partner in any partnership, executive director,
employee, staff, advisor receiving regular salary, or holds more than 1% of total voting shares
of the company similar to or material competing with the Company or its subsidiaries.

9. Has no any other characteristic which make him/her incapable of expressing independent
opinions with regard to the Company’s business.

10. After being appointed, Independent Director may be authorized by the Board of Directors to
make a collective decision to execute business of the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries, its major shareholders, or
its controlling persons.

Any person being appointed as Independent Director of the Company may be a person who has or
has had a business relationship, or may be a professional advisor receiving amount exceeding those
specified in item 5 or 6 in case the Board of Directors has duly considered that relationship will not
affect the ability to perform duties and express independent opinions.
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(For consideration of Agenda 7) Enclosure No.4.1

Information of the Proposed Auditors for the Year 2025

EY Office Limited

Name-Surname Mrs. Poonnard Paocharoen

Age 51 years

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. [Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 5238

Educational qualifications Master of Business Administration, Kasetsart University

Bachelor of Accountancy, Thammasat University

Approved auditor by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand and the Stock

Other Exchange of Thailand

Member of Federation of Accounting Professions

Work Experiences

2012 - Present Partner, EY Office Limited
1994 - 2012 Assistant Auditor, EY Office Limited
Shareholding in the company No (information as of 20 March 2025)
Year of Appointment as Auditor Signed the financial statements of the Company from 2024 - present

Information for consideration

Familial relationship with director or executives or major shareholders of the Company or subsidiary companies: No

Relationship with the Company/subsidiary companies/associated company or juristic person that may cause a

conflict of interest at present: No
Significant business relationship that may affect the independence of the auditor: No
Relationship as a director, staff or employee or position held in the Company or subsidiary companies: No

EY Office Limited

Lake Rajada Office Complex 33rd Floor,

No. 193/136-137, Rajadapisek Road, Klongtory, Bangkok 10110
Tel: (+66) 2264 9090 Fax: (+66) 2264 0789-90

Contact Information
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Information of the Proposed Auditors for the Year 2025

EY Office Limited

Name-Surname Ms. Kosum Cha-em

Age 52 years

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. |Certified Public Accountant Registration No.6011

Educational qualifications Master of Economics, Thammasat University

Bachelor of Accountancy, Thammasat University

Approved auditor by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand and the

Other Stock Exchange of Thailand

Member of Federation of Accounting Professions

Work Experiences

2015 - Present Partner, EY Office Limited
1995 - 2015 Assistant Auditor, EY Office Limited

Shareholding in the company No (information as of 20 March 2025)
Year of Appointment as Auditor Has never signed the financial statements of the Company
Information for consideration
Familial relationship with director or executives or major shareholders of the Company or subsidiary No
companies:
Relationship with the Company/subsidiary companies/associated company or juristic person that may cause No
a conflict of interest at present:
Significant business relationship that may affect the independence of the auditor: No
Relationship as a director, staff or employee or position held in the Company or subsidiary companies: No

EY Office Limited

Lake Rajada Office Complex 33rd Floor,

No. 193/136-137, Rajadapisek Road, Klongtory, Bangkok 10110
Tel: (+66) 2264 9090 Fax: (+66) 2264 0789-90

Contact Information
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Information of the Proposed Auditors for the Year 2025

EY Office Limited

Name-Surname Ms. Vilailak Laohasrisakul

Age 50 vyears

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. |Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 6140

Educational qualifications Master of Arts (Economic Law), Chulalongkorn University

Bachelor of Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University

Approved auditor by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand and the

Other Stock Exchange of Thailand

Member of Federation of Accounting Professions

Work Experiences

2015 - Present Partner, EY Office Limited
1996 - 2015 Assistant Auditor, EY Office Limited

Shareholding in the company No (information as of 20 March 2025)
Year of Appointment as Auditor Has never signed the financial statements of the Company
Information for consideration
Familial relationship with director or executives or major shareholders of the Company or subsidiary N
companies: o
Relationship with the Company/subsidiary companies/associated company or juristic person that may N
cause a conflict of interest at present: °
Significant business relationship that may affect the independence of the auditor: No
Relationship as a director, staff or employee or position held in the Company or subsidiary companies: No

EY Office Limited

Lake Rajada Office Complex 33rd Floor,

No. 193/136-137, Rajadapisek Road, Klongtory, Bangkok 10110
Tel: (+66) 2264 9090 Fax: (+66) 2264 0789-90

Contact Information
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Details of the Independent Directors Proposed as Proxy Holders
for the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Interest in Special
Name Position Age Address agenda Interest in
item agenda item *

1. Mr. Thana - Member of the Audit 56 No0.20/224 Moo 9, Agenda 6 None
Thienachariya Committee years | Bang Talat, Pak Kret,
Member of the Nonthaburi 11120
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee
Member of the
Corporate
Governance and
Ethics Committee
Independent Director

2. Mr. Sunyaluck - Member of the Audit 47 No. 135, Ratchapruek Agenda 6 None
Chaikajornwat Committee years | Road Soi 6, Bangchak,
Member of the Pasicharoen,
Corporate Bangkok 10160
Governance and
Ethics Committee
Independent Director

*

Special Interest Special interest means having a special interest that is different from other directors in
every agenda item proposed, include receive the benefits or compensation beyond the normal criteria.

** Additional condition as per Department of Business Development’s Announcement dated February 4,
2013 regarding Proxy Granting, Proxy Holders’ Voting Rights, and Delivery of an Invitation to
Shareholders’ Meeting of Public Company

G. The vote casting of a proxy holder is considered as a vote made on behalf of a proxy grantor.
Therefore, a proxy holder, including those proxy holders who are independent directors that may
have conflict of interest in any agenda, can still cast a vote on that agenda, on behalf of a proxy
grantor who has no conflict of interest.

Note:

Agenda 6: To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2025.
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The Company’s Articles of Association Concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

CHAPTER IV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

12.The Board of Directors shall comprise of not less than 5 directors, provided that at least half (1/2)

13.

14.

18.

19.

24.

26.

27.

of the directors shall reside within the Kingdom of Thailand.

Except as stipulated in Article 17, the directors shall be appointed by the Shareholders Meeting in

accordance with the following rules and procedures:

(1) Each shareholder shall have one vote per share.

(2) Each shareholder may cast all his/her vote(s) according to (1) to elect one or several
candidates as directors, but could not allot the votes to any person at any number.

(3) The candidates receiving the highest number of votes in the respective order of the votes
shall be elected as directors at such time. In the event that a number of candidates receive
an equal number of votes for the last directorship exceed the number of directors the
Company required or to be elected at such time, the chairman of the meeting shall have a
second vote.

At every Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, one-third of the directors shall retire from
office, the director who has held office longest shall be the first person to retire. If the number of
directors is not a multiple of three, then the number of directors nearest to one-third must retire
from office. The retired shall be eligible for re-election.

The Shareholders’ Meeting may resolve to remove any director from office before the expiration
of the term of office by the votes of not less than three-fourths of the total votes of the
shareholders who attend and have the right to vote with shares amounting to not less than one-
half of the shares held by the shareholders present at the meeting and have the right to vote.

A director may or may not be a shareholder of the Company.

Directors are prohibited to operate, be a partner or a director in any other entity with the same
business as the Company or any entity who is a competitor, unless the Shareholders’
Meeting is informed prior to the appointment.

The Company shall pay the following compensation to the directors:

(1) Annual bonus for the position of the Company’s director.
(2) Salary, bonus in the case that any director being employed by the Company.

(3) Compensation under the business contract between the Company and a director or any
compensation in order to acquire the Company’s normal commercial interest.

Two directors may jointly sign and affix common seal of the Company to bind the Company.

The Board of Directors may specify and change the name of the authorized directors
whose signatures affixed with the Company’s seal.

The Board of Directors’ Meeting shall be held at least once every 3 months.
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The Company’s Articles of Association Concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

28.

20.

30.

CHAPTER YV
SHAREHOLDERS MEETING

The Board shall arrange for an Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held within four (4)
months after the end of the fiscal year of the Company.

Other Shareholders’ Meetings, apart from the abovementioned meeting, are called Extraordinary
General Meetings. The Board of Directors may summon an Extraordinary General Meeting
whenever they deem appropriate.

One or more shareholders holding shares amounting to not less than ten (10) percent of the total
number of shares sold may submit a written request to the Board of Directors for calling an
Extraordinary General Meeting at any time, but the subjects and reasons for calling such
meeting shall be clearly stated in such request. In this regard, the Board of Directors shall
proceed to call a meeting of shareholders to be held within forty-five (45) days as from the date
of receipt of such request from the shareholders.

In case the Board of Directors does not hold the meeting within the period as prescribed under
paragraph three (3), the shareholders who subscribe their names or other shareholders holding
the number of shares as required may call such meeting within forty-five (45) days from the date
under paragraph three (3). In this regard, the meeting shall be deemed as the Shareholders’
Meeting called by the Board of Directors. The Company shall be responsible for necessary
expenses incurring from such meeting and reasonably provide facilitation.

In case the meeting summoned by such shareholders under paragraph four (4) is not constitute
a quorum as prescribed in Article 30, the shareholders under paragraph four (4) shall jointly
responsible to the Company for expenses incurred from such meeting.

The Board of Directors shall summon a Shareholders’ Meeting by sending a notice to the
shareholders not less than 7 days before the date of the meeting. The notice shall specify the
place, date, time and agenda of the meeting and the subject matter to be submitted to the
meeting together with appropriate details - specify clearly agenda that to acknowledge, or to
approve, or to consider and also compose of the Board of Directors’ opinion. Such notice shall
be published in a newspaper or via electronic means, through the process which shall be in
accordance with the applicable laws, not less than 3 consecutive days in advance of the date of
the meeting date at least 3 days.

The quorum of a Shareholders’ Meeting shall be either not less than 25 shareholders or proxies (if
any) presented, or not less than half of the total number of shareholders, and the total number of
shares altogether should not less than one-third of the total number of shares sold.

Under each Shareholders’ Meeting, Board of Directors may determine to have the Shareholders’
Meeting through electronic media in accordance with the rules and procedures as prescribed by
the related laws.

The Shareholder's Meetings through electronic media and the sending of a summoning notice
for the Shareholder's Meetings including its related documents shall be conducted under the
procedure and period as provided by the laws and Articles of Association or sent by electronic
mails, but it will be sent in accordance with the period and advertisement in newspapers or via
electronic means, through the process which shall be in accordance with the applicable laws.

The Shareholders, who attended the Shareholders’ Meeting through electronic media with the
same procedures and terms as mentioned above, shall be deemed to be the attendance of the
Shareholders’ Meeting which can be counted to constitute a quorum for Shareholders’ Meeting
and shall be deemed to be the legally meeting under the related laws.

When 1 hour has elapsed from the appropriated time fixed for any Shareholders’ Meeting and
the number of shareholders presenting at the Meeting does not constitute a quorum as specified,
if such Meeting is a Shareholders’ Meeting convened because of a request from shareholders, it
shall be extinguished. If it is not convened because of a request from shareholders, it shall be re-
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The Company’s Articles of Association Concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

convened by sending notice to shareholders not less than 7 days prior to the Meeting. At this
later, a quorum as prescribed is not compulsory.

The shares held by the Company, are not be counted to constitute a quorum for a Shareholders’
Meeting.

31. The resolution of the shareholders meeting shall require the following votes:

(1) In ordinary case, it shall be adopted by a simple majority vote of the shareholders who
attend the meeting and cast their votes. In case of equality of votes, the chairman of the
meeting shall have a second and casting vote. One share shall count as one vote.

(2) In the following cases, it shall be adopted by the votes of not less than three-fourths of the
total votes of the shareholders who attend and have the right to vote:

(a) sale or transfer of the whole or a material part of the Company’s business to others;

(b) purchase or acceptance of transfer to the Company of business of another entity;

(c) execution, amendment or termination of a contract in relation to the leasing of the whole
or a material part of the Company’s business, assignment to other person to manage
the Company’s business or consolidation of the business with other persons with the
purpose of profit and loss sharing;

In this regard, the shares held by the Company are not be eligible for votes casting and will
not be counted to constitute the resolution of the shareholders meeting.

32. The agendas which the annual general meeting of shareholders shall require are as follows:

(1)  To consider the declaration of the past operational results.
(2) To consider and approve the Company’s Balance Sheet.
(3)  To approve the appropriation of the profit.

(4) To approve the appointment of the new director in replacement to the director who are
due to retire by rotation.

(5)  To approve the appointment of the Company’s auditor.
(6) To consider other issues.

CHAPTER VI
ACCOUNTING, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING AUDITS

33. The fiscal year of the Company shall commence on the 1st of January and end on the 31st of
December of each year.

35. The Board of Directors shall arrange for making a balance sheet and a profit and loss statement
on the last day of the fiscal year of the Company and submit them to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders. Prior to submitting them to a Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of
Directors shall arrange for the balance sheet and the profit and loss statement to be audited.

36. The Board of Directors shall send the following documents to the shareholders together with the
notice summoning an Annual General Meeting.

(1) Copies of the audited balance sheet and profit and loss statement together with the report
from the auditor thereon;

(2) Annual report of the Board of Directors.
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The Company’s Articles of Association Concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

37. Dividends cannot be disbursed from other sources of funds except profits. In the event that the
Company has accumulated losses, no dividends will be paid.

Dividend payments are equally divided according to the number of shares. Treasury stock
will not receive any dividend payments.

The Board of Directors may authorize interim dividend payments from time to time when

there are reasonable profits to support the move and such decision will be announced at the next
shareholders meeting.

Dividend payments should be made within one month from the Annual General Meeting or
whenever the Board of Directors consents, according to circumstances. The notice has to be
made in writing to all shareholders and the notification of impending dividend payments
announced in Thai newspapers_or via electronic means, through the process which shall be in
accordance with the applicable laws, over three consecutive days.

38. The Company has to allocate not less than 5% of annual net profits as statutory reserves, net of

accumulated losses (if any), until the value of statutory reserves is not less than 10% of
registered capital.

41. The Company’s auditors are responsible to attend every shareholders meeting whenever there
occurs the agenda of considering the Company’s Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statements, or
any accounting difficulties of the Company, in order to provide clarification or explanation on
accounting audit to shareholders. The Company shall deliver all related reports and documents
necessary for shareholders to its auditors as well.
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Documents and evidence that attendees have to identity proofing before joining
the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders through Electronic Media (e-AGM)
and procedure for proxy granting, registration and voting.

For GMM Grammy Public Company Limited (“‘the Company”) to have the shareholders meeting
performed with transparency, legitimacy and benefit to all shareholders, it is deemed appropriate to have the
documents or evidential materials showing the status of shareholders or their representatives who are entitled to
participate and vote in the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (e-AGM) examined and as the standard
procedures to be followed further. However, the Company hereby reserves the rights for making the exception in
submitting such documents or evidential materials showing the status of each shareholder or its representative
who is entitled to participate in the meeting as deemed proper by the Company.

Shareholders or proxies who wish to participate the e-AGM meeting must submit documents
confirming their identity as specified by the Company to the Company by April 18, 2025, when the Company has
reviewed the information in the list of shareholders' entitled to participate the meeting completely. The organizer
of meeting via electronic media will send an individual link for attending the meeting and the system access manual
to email which the shareholders informed the Company in the registration form for attending the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders via Electronic Media (e-AGM) (Enclosure 12) and the individual link will be sent to you 2
days in advance before the date of the e-AGM meeting.

However, this e-AGM conference is via electronic media meeting only, and there will be no venue for
the meeting, asking for cooperation from shareholders who do not come to the location of the Company's office.

(1) Documents or evidences required before attending the e-AGM

1) In case the shareholders of attending the e-AGM in person.

1.1) Please fill in the registration form for attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
via Electronic Media (e-AGM) (Enclosure 12). Kindly fill your e-mail and mobile phone number
clearly in order to be used for the meeting registration and attach identification document to confirm
the attendance of e-AGM. The individual link to attend the e-AGM including the system access
manual will be sent to the email that the shareholders or proxies have registered with the Company
for use in attending the meeting via electronic meeting (e-AGM ) according to Enclosure 8

1.2) Attach a copy of identification document to confirm the attendance of e-AGM as follows:
1.2.1) In the event that the shareholder is an ordinary person:

A copy valid evidence issued by governmental authorities, i.e., the identification card,
governance officer identification card, driver license or passport, including the evidence of
name or last name’s change (if any) and sign the authentication.

1.2.2) For a Juristic Person, in case of shareholder’s representative (director) attend the
meeting by themselves:

1. A copy valid evidence issued by governmental authorities of shareholder’s
representative (director), i.e., the identification card, governance officer identification
card, driver license or passport, including the evidence of name or last name’s change
(if any), and sign the authentication. And

2. A copy of shareholder's Letter of Certification (not over 6 months) certified by
authorized director(s) showing that such authorized director(s) has the authority to act
on behalf of the juristic Person.

1.3) Please submit the registration form for attending the e-AGM and identification document as
specified in item 1.1) and item 1.2) by scanning or taking photos and send them to the Company
within April 18, 2025 via e-mail: cs@gmmgrammy.com.
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2) In case the shareholders appointing proxy to the Company’s Independent Director or another
person attend the e-AGM.

In case that a shareholder is unable to attend the meeting, he/she may authorize the Company’s
Independent Director (please use one of the Proxy Form A or Form B or Form C (Custodian) in Enclosure
11 and please see details of the Independent Directors in Enclosure 5 of invitation to the e-AGM) or
another person as their proxies to attend and vote instead.

2.1)

2.2)

2.3)

Please fill the registration form for attending the e-AGM (Enclosure 12). Kindly fill email and Mobile
phone number of shareholder and proxies (other person) clearly in order to be used for the meeting
registration and attach identification document to confirm the attendance of e-AGM . The company
will send the individual link for attending the meeting and the system access manual to the email
that the shareholders or proxies have registered with the Company.

In case the shareholders proxy to the Company’s Independent Directors to attend and vote in the
e-AGM meeting, please fill the name and surname of Independent Director in the meeting
registration.

Please completely fill statement and sign in the proxy (Enclosure 11) or the Company’s proxy form,
it has sent to shareholders together with the invitation letter of the e-AGM , with sign by the proxy
grantor and the proxy holder (in case of other persons) Supporting document for the appointment
of proxy as follow:

A) In case a natural person

1. A Proxy Form in 2.2) above which is completely filled and signed by the proxy grantor and
the proxy holder;

2. Acopy of valid ID card or passport or other official documents issued by government authority
in 1) above certification true copy by the proxy grantor and the proxy holder.

B) In case juristic person

1. A Proxy Form in 2.2) above which is completely filled and signed by such juristic person’s
authorized person and have such juristic person’s company seal affixed (if any) of the proxy
grantor and signed by the proxy holder; and

2. A copy of shareholder's Letter of the Affidavit or Certification of incorporation (which is issued
in the period of not exceeding 6 months) certified by authorized director(s) showing that such
authorized director (s) signing the proxy has the authority to act on behalf of the juristic person
who is a shareholder; and

3. Acopy of valid ID card or passport or other official documents issued by government authority
certified true copy by the proxy grantor; and

4. A copy of valid ID card or passport or other official documents issued by government authority
certified true copy by the proxy holder.

In case Custodian is proxy:

Please enclose evidences of proxy grantor in accordance with B) 2. to B) 4. together with
enclose letter of certification or copy of a permit to certify the permission to act as a Custodian.

For a Non - Thai Nationality or a Juristic Person established under the foreign laws

The documents and evidences will be as required above. In case the original documents or
evidences are not in the English language, the English translation certified true and correct
translation by its authorized director (s) is required.

The shareholders may send the registration form for the e-AGM , the identification document and
the completed proxy and send them to the Company within April 18, 2025 via both channels as
follows;

1. A copy of documents send by E-mail: cs@gmmgrammy.com ; then

2. submit it along with accompanying documents for proxy appointment in the envelope enclosed
with the Notice (No stamp needed) to GMM Grammy Public Company Limited, Office of
Corporate Secretary, 41st Floor, No. 50, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke),
Khlongtoeinuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110.
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(2) Proxy procedures

Three types of Proxy Forms (Form A, B and C), according to the announcement of Department of Business
Development, Ministry of Commerce, have been delivered to the shareholders. Shareholders (natural person,
institution, or juristic person) who cannot attend this Meeting in person can appoint proxies by the following

methods:
1.

A proxy is given to any person or the Company’s independent director as desired by such the
shareholder by indicating the name and particulars of such person who is to act as a proxy or
making a mark in front of the independent director's name as stated in the proxy form. Only one
person is selected as a proxy to participate in the meeting.

Baht 20 worth of duty stamp is affixed with the date crossed out on the proxy for legal validity.
However, the registered proxy is given with convenience in using the duty stamps prepared by the
Company with free of charge.

The proxy is requested to have the true and genuine proxy with documentation delivered by mail in
advance to the Company’s address for the attention of : GMM Grammy Public Company Limited,
Office of Corporate Secretary, 41st Floor, No. 50, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road
(Asoke), Khlongtoeinuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110. Please send them to the Company not later
than 5.00 p.m. (Bangkok time) on April 18, 2025, so that the officer of the Company are given
enough time to check the documentation.

Any shareholder can hold any amount of the Company’s shares and must authorize only one proxy to attend and
vote at the meeting and shall not split the number of shares to several proxies to vote separately.

(3) Registration for the meeting participation (e-AGM)

1) After the Company receive the document in 1) or 2) above, The Company has checked the list of
shareholders according to the shareholders registration book on the record date and the shareholders
and proxies have confirmed their identity with the Company afterwards within the specified date, the
individual link to attend the e-AGM including the system access manual will be sent to the email that the
shareholders or proxies have registered with the Company for use in attending the shareholders’ meeting
via electronic media meeting (e-AGM) through the system of Inventech Systems (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
(As least two day prior to the e-AGM). Suggested to apply 1 email to 1 shareholders/proxy

Please read Guidelines for Attending General Meeting of Shareholders via Electronic Media (e-AGM) as
per Enclosure 8 or the system access manual thoroughly form the email that the Company sent to you.

User Manual and Video ot using Inventech Connect

In the case you have not received the individual link to attend the e-EGM including the system access
manual within April 28, 2025, please immediately contact the Inventech Systems (Thailand) Co.,Ltd. by
Tel. +66 2-931-9137 or by LINE ID : @inventechconnect immediately

2) Inthis connection, the registration and vote counting program of the Company can be used with computer,
notebooks, tablets or mobile phones via Web Browser: Chrome (Suggest) / Safari / Microsoft Edge
(** The system does not support Internet Explorer.), with internet speed 0.5-2.5 Mbps or basic home
internet.

Note : In case of attending the meeting via tablet and mobile phone must install Zoom Meeting program
before attending the meeting.
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3) The system will be open to attend the e-AGM meeting 60 minutes in advance before the meeting starts.
However, the meeting will start at the Company time specified from 2:00 p.m. on April 29, 2025, only.

4) Login to the system, the attendees must use the information of the shareholder registration number and the
number of the shareholder's ID card.

5) Voting via e-Voting system, shareholders or proxies can vote for each agenda only by voting "Agree",
"Disagree" or "Abstain". In case of not voting on any agenda, the system will immediately assume that you vote
as "Agree" (using the method count the votes by pouring the votes towards agreeing).

If you have any problems with the software, please contact Inventech Call Center

Q o29319137

n @inventechconnect

The systern available during 22 - 29 April 2025 at 08.30 a.m. — 05.30 p.m.
(Specifically excludes holidays and public holidays)

Report a problem

@irventechconnect

Registration attend the meeting after to the commencement of the meeting:

In order to protect the rights and provide most convenience to shareholders who intend to participate in the
shareholders meeting but may fail to present themselves on time, those shareholders are allow to attend the
meeting. However, the Company would reserve the right to restrict that such shareholders refrain from voting for
the agenda that had been considered and the voting result had already been announced. Such shareholders are
able to provide their votes only on the remaining agendas.

(4) Provisions in casting the vote

4.1) Vote casting and condition

A shareholder shall have votes equal to the number of shares held (or as states in the proxy according to
Clause 31 of the Company’s Articles of Association). One share shall be equal to one vote.

A. In voting each agenda via electronic media (e-AGM), It will be a vote through the e-Voting system,
which the shareholders or proxies can vote for each agenda only by voting "Agree", "Disagree" or
"Abstain", which the system will open for you to vote on each agenda within the specified time. In
case of not voting on any agenda, the system will immediately assume that you vote as "Agree".

B. In case of no shareholder casting Disagree or Abstain (depending on each case), it is considered
that the meeting unanimously resolved to approve any matter as proposed.

C. Voting in case of the proxy and the shareholders indicate their votes in the proxy form, the Company
will take those voting record as part of vote casting and will be counted in the voting process upon
the proxy receipt.

D. Any proxy using Form A and B, the proxy holder cannot split the votes in each agenda, whereas the
proxy holder using Form C shall split their votes. This votes splitting can be executed only for the
foreign shareholders who appoint custodians in Thailand as a custodian to attend and vote at the
meeting,

E. The resolution of the shareholders meeting must consist of the following votes (Clause 31 of the
Company’s Articles of Association):

* In ordinary case, it shall be adopted by a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend
the meeting and cast their votes, one share shall count as one vote, is considered the meeting’s
resolution. In case of equality of votes, the chairman of the meeting shall be entitled to a final
one casting vote.
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* In other cases, such as where required by law or the Company’s Articles of Association that the
resolution be made in accordance with the requirements of the law or the Company’s Article of
Association, the shareholders will be informed before casting votes on each agenda.

Additional condition as per Department of Business Development’'s Announcement dated February 4, 2013
regarding Proxy Granting, Proxies’ Voting Rights, and Delivery of an Invitation to Shareholders’ Meeting of
Public Company

F. The casting of a proxy holder is considered as a vote made on behalf of a proxy grantor. Therefore,
a proxy holder, including those proxies who are independent directors that may have conflict of
interest in any agenda, can still cast a vote on that agenda, on behalf of a proxy grantor who has no
conflict of interest.

4.2) Voting procedures on each agenda item

proxies
Voting for each agenda, the conductor will propose for shareholders or proxies to consider voting for each
agenda. The meeting will be asked if any shareholders disagree or abstain from voting.

For those who attend the meeting via electronic media (e-AGM), the conductor will propose for
shareholders or proxies to consider voting for each agenda: which will use the e-Voting voting system.
Voting will be open within the specified time.

4.3) Counting votes and vote declaration
The counting of the votes of shareholders attending the meeting in person.

A. In counting votes of each agenda, the conductor will announce the ended voting time before starting
the vote counting process by way that the Company will deduct the Disagree or Abstain votes from
the total shares of shareholders or proxies attending the meeting and entitled to vote and declared
the voting result to the meeting.

B. Once the voting has been closed via the e-Voting system, the shareholders or proxies will no longer
be able to vote or change votes.

The counting of the votes of proxies.

C. The Company will count the votes according to the proxy form, no matter theproxy is in the meeting
or not.

D. Any agenda in the proxy form does not show the vote casting, such agenda will be counted as “Agree”
no matter the proxy is in the meeting or not, unless the proxy expressed the vote casting in other
options.
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Guidelines for attending of Electronic Meeting by Inventech Connect

Shareholders and proxies wishing to attend the meeting can proceed according to the procedure for
submitting the request form to attend the meeting via electronic media as follows :

Step for requesting Username & Password from via e-Request system

1. The Shareholders must submit a request to attend the meeting by Electronic Means via Web Browser at
https://con.inventech.co.th/GRAMMY834546R/#/homepage or scan QR Code '-

and follow the steps

as shown in the picture

A=l
0 Click link URL or scan QR Code in the letter notice Annual General Meeting

e Choose type request for request form to 4 step

Step 1 Fill in the information shown on the registration
Step 2 Fill in the information for verify
Step 3 Verify via OTP

Step 4 Successful transaction, The system will display information again to
verify the exactitude of the information

** Merge user accounts, please using

. *% e Please wait for an email information detail of meeting and Password
the same email and phone number

2. For Shareholders who would like to attend the Meeting either through the Electronic Means by yourself or
someone who is not the provided independent directors, please note that the electronic registration will be
available from 18 April 2025 at 8:30 a.m. and shall be closed on 29 April 2025 Until the end of the meeting.

3. The electronic conference system will be available on 29 April 2025 at 12:00 p.m. (2 hours before the opening
of the meeting). Shareholders or proxy holders shall use the provided Username and Password and follow the
instruction manual to access the system.

For Shareholders who authorize one of the Company’s Independent Directors to attend and vote on his or her behalf,
The Shareholders can submit a request to attend the meeting by Electronic Means of the specified procedures or
send the proxy form together with the required documents to the Company by mail to the following address. The
proxy form and required documents shall be delivered to the Company by 18 April 2025 at 5.00 p.m.

GMM Grammy Public Company Limited
Office of Corporate Secretary, 41st Floor,
No. 50, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110.

If you have any problems with the software, please contact Inventech Call Center

Q 02-931-9137

w @inventechconnect

The system available during 22 — 29 April 2025 at 08.30 a.m. — 05.30 p.m.

Report a problem
(Specifically excludes holidays and public holidays)

@inventechconnect


https://con.inventech.co.th/GRAMMY834546R/#/homepage

Enclosure 8

Get email and password that you received from your email or request OTP

Click on “Register” button, the system has already registered

o oA | e

and counted as a quorum. ’ e

Click on “Join Attendance”, Then click on “Accept” button

rra—

Select which agenda that you want to vote
Click on “Vote” button

Click the voting button as you choose

The system will display status your latest vote

To cancel the last vote, please press the button “Cancel latest vote (This means that your most recent vote
will be equal to not voting, or your vote will be determined by the agenda result) Shareholders can conduct

a review of the votes on an agenda basis. When the voting results for that agenda are closed.

Step to ask questions via Inventech Connect

» Select which agenda

tamn sy gloriien -

» Click on “Question” button

o Ask a question

) 4 Type the question then click “Send”

nsyMsUsYn

o Ask the question via video

» Click on “Conference”
» Click on “OK” for confirm your queue

» Please wait for the queue for you then your can

open the microphone and camera

User Manual and Video ot using Inventech Connect

* Note Operation of the electronic conferencing system and Inventech Connect systems. Check internet of shareholder or proxy include
equipment and/or program that can use for best performance. Please use equipment and/or program as the follows to use systems.
1. Internet speed requirements
- High-Definition Video: Must be have internet speed at 2.5 Mbps (Speed internet that recommend).
- High Quality Video: Must be have internet speed at 1.0 Mbps.
- Standard Quality Video: Must be have internet speed at 0.5 Mbps.
2. Equipment requirements.
- Smartphone/Tablet that use I0S or android OS.
- PC/Laptop that use Windows or Mac OS.

3. Requirement Browser Chrome (Recommend) / Safari / Microsoft Edge ** The system does not supported internet explorer.



Enclosure 8

Guidelines for Attending the Meeting via Electronic Meeting (e-Meeting)

User Inventech Connect System Inspector

Scan QR code from the

invitation or link to website

|

Fill in request from

(e-Request)
|

Send request form l

Disapproved

A 4

Edit data and attach file

A

Approved

!

Click link “Register” for attend the

il e ety The number of shares

will be counted as a quorum

Watch live broadcast and vote
(e-Voting)

o e e oo Condition of use
/ \

In case Merge account/change account

4
!
. In case filing request multiple by using the same email and phone number, the systems will merge account or in
1

| case user has more than 1 account, you can click on "Change account” and the previous account will still count the base
1

| in the meeting.

1

| In case Exit the meeting

1

: Attendees can click on “Register to leave the quorum”, the systems will be number of your shares out from the
1

\

+_Mmeeting base. /

N e o o o o o T T -

[ ———————
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Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2025 AGM via Electronic Media (e-AGM)

FUMeens I LI P
Date Month Year
(1) 619111‘1/‘”"!5]}1 ................................................................. Wﬂqﬂlﬁmﬂ/ﬁiﬂ53”151”151!/1’”?\3%@&5“7”\3 ......................................................
I/We, Identification Card/Passport number
(31315 1 L2 IO UWULWU?‘I ........................... DU e 9“1’1Uﬁ/u"’11'3\1 ...........................................
Nationality Residing at No. Road Sub district
° @ 1% @ S
DUND/MUR ... K N 2 10 1 TN iﬂﬁ‘lﬂwmﬂ ...........................................
District Province Postal Code
3 YAy Ao ad & A o o
) Wudaeruuee UTHN DBV UNTUN INA (UNI1FU)
Being a shareholder of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited (“the Company)
= YA Y
Laﬁummﬂugam{ju .......................................................................................................
Shareholders’ Registration No.
Ay o g 2L v
TABRDHUAMIAYTITNAAU oo Ny
Holding the ordinary share in the amount of shares
(3) doyamslauldide (f1i)
Interest information (if any)
(4) A0/ Question
1)
2)
3)
AIWO/SIGNCA. .o H0o¥u/Shareholder
OO )
/vhummiafhﬁmmd’Nﬁﬁwﬁaui’uﬂszw Taedada@nyMIV3 EN MIBWA: cs@emmerammy.com ¥30 duenaInfuLs i suald Tﬂﬂ“ldquﬂﬂwmﬂ\

a ]

Y YA 9 Y @

apusUTENY dsaaslidtetundoudumisdodanlszagua (idesdauanui) Taoaaldiu mnymsusim e ldswimeds

u a

a o

aad & Ao o 5 o s & A ad d a A
UIHN UDUDN LINTNN 1N (WHI1TU) AUNAVIYMIDIANT BU 41 1AUN 50 DINTUDUDN LNTUY WA DUUFYUIN 21 (@Iﬁﬂ) LL‘IJ'NﬂﬁmefJLWﬁE]
AU AFAUNNA 10110
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting date, please sending Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2025 AGM to the company secretary via email:

cs@gmmgrammy.com or send the original documents in the envelope enclosed with the Notice (No stamp needed) to GMM Grammy Public Company Limited, Office of

K Corporate Secretary, 41st Floor, No. 50, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110. /



mailto:cs@gmmgrammy.com
mailto:cs@gmmgrammy.com
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GRAMMY

QR Code Downloading Procedures for Documents of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders (e-AGM) and the Annual Registration Statement /the 2024
Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report)

The Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd., as a securities registrar under the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, has developed a system which allows SET Listed Companies to send to the
shareholders documents regarding the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders t (e-AGM)
and the Annual Registration Statement /the 2024 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report) in the
form of e- books accessible through QR Code, thus allows the shareholders to access the
information with ease. The aforementioned documents could be downloaded from the QR Code

by following the steps below.

For iOS Operating System (iOS 11 and above)
1. Turn on the mobile phone camera.
2. Turn the mobile phone camera to the QR Code to scan it.
3. The notification will appear on top of the screen. Click on the notification to access
documents regarding the meeting.
Remark: If the notification does not appear on the mobile phone, the QR Code can be
scanned with other applications such as QR CODE READER, Facebook or
Line.

For Android Operating System
1. Open applications such as QR CODE READER, Facebook or Line.
How to scan the QR Code with Line application
= Open Line application and click on "Add friend"
= Choose "QR Code"
= Scan the QR Code
2. Scan the QR Code to access documents regarding the meeting.

Documents of the 2025 AGM and the Annual Registration Statement /the 2024 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report)

Enclosure 10 Page 1/1 GMM Grammy Public Company Limited
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agtuaan U ALA / WU
Address Road Sub-District

N8 / 1A Jandn svialelaweilel
District Province Zip Code

GRAMMY Tilsnfin
ansuanuil
o <3 LA 20 U
LUURUIADINIURUNS LLUU A
Duty Stamp
Proxy Form A Affixed
. (Baht 20)
ey
Written at
1. 4w i ey WA
I/'We Date Month Year
4
Vot
wanzieugiavu
Address o
Shareholders’
Registration No.
Arya
Nationality
2. fludfedures wSEm ABadn wngudl e (W) (udEner)
Being a shareholder of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited (“the Company”)
Tnefleduandnyauauivausu T uazesn@enasazuuulAvintu @en
holding the ordinary share in the amount of shares, and eligible for votes
3. venaudunylf (naudunslaiNes 1 aw) (@unsonausunslinasunitaszaessiing Tnadnaazidaanudeaidiunsog 5)
Hereby appoint (May grant proxy to the Company’s Independent Director of which details as shown in Enclosure 5)
wnEsYN LBasaansa: / wnasnuansnl fauasiml
Mr. Thana Thienachariya / Mr. Sunyaluck Chaikajornwat
O nesunsdsss Msadaniies 1 vinw 21 fl
Independent Director (please choose only one person) Age Years
mg"fl’lumﬁ nuUU FNLIA / W99
Address Road Sub—Distrigt -
A1Lna / 11 Aandn svialelawlel 70
District Province Zip Code
O WL/ U/ WA ang il
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
‘ g 0
aqﬁ’lum‘um nuU ALA / LN
Address Road Sub—Distrigt -
A1LNa / 1R FIudn svialelsweilel 9
District Province Zip Code
O WY/ W/ WA ang 1
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years

rileelaeseudien Wudumaedmidiiedlszguuaseendaasnsuunmd s lunsussgasnitgaaiuilszanil 2568 Tuduaimsii 29

sy 2568 1aan 14.00 W Tugtluunmsiszgakin@edidnneaiind (‘e-Meeting”, “e-AGM") Ingilds1iu Zoom Teazinevendn 04 sies Auditorium 914 21 iaei

50 eNASRENEH UNIHH AR DLUWAYNEN 21 (B1AN) uItAARIAEMTE LATRILN NPV MAWSEI WA IRRENsLsTgNReB A nMIaTing W.A. 2563 uay

= A A 9 A A o= A o Y
ﬂgﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ‘@ﬂgﬁ‘:ﬁm ?;l‘LI’E]‘LL"'I NINEIULN W@mxwmau”lﬁlmu I8N LLRZANLNAUAIEL
As only one of my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 at 2.00
p.m. in the form of an electronic meeting (“e-Meeting”, “e-AGM") via the Zoom system, which will be broadcast live from the Auditorium Room, 21st floor of

GMM Grammy Place, located at No. 50, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok, according to the Emergency Decree on Electronic
Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020) and other related laws or regulations or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

a o ve o P o H 9y a v v Yy o
Aanslangiusendunglinssyinlulunnsdsepauniu Wewdeudrdmidldnssvinesynisenis
Any act performed by the proxy at such meeting shall be deemed as my/our own act in all respects.

4

ANGID]

Signature
4

ANGID]

Signature

(

Huaudung avie

( ) Proxy Grantor Signature
Huaudung asie

) Proxy Grantor Signature

nu8Lune / Remarks:

o

Hiuneuduny

) Proxy Holder

o

Hiuneuduny

) Proxy Holder

ot 9 o o o o 9 90, o = = P = ' ' o 9 @ v e o < = 2
anu‘wuﬂu'awn:f«u:mmu@uaumlﬂQiuuﬂuawﬂ:mmiwLmﬂfuﬂuamﬂﬂi:ﬂqmmmﬂﬂmmmmuuu VLNZQ’W’WU u,mu,aﬂmmuuuimﬂuuuﬂuauwwmaﬂumaLLﬂnmimm:LLuummim
The shareholder assigning the Proxy must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote at the Meeting and shall not split the number of shares to several proxies to vote separately.

wiliRenausunz uuu n : FedszniansuiamngsianisAn3as nvuauuuwldenausuns (217uf 5) w.A. 2550

Proxy Form A: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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GRAMMY
. A . Tilsaaa
LUURUITADINAURUNG LLUU Y o1nsuaaui
d o 1 o a o a as as 20U
(LLUU‘YIﬂ'I‘Huﬂi"IEln’]iEI'I\‘l ) ‘VIQZNaUQuﬂSﬂﬂmaﬂﬂﬂﬂLﬁ]uﬁnﬂﬁl'}) Dutv St
uty Stamp
Prox.y .Form B Affixed
(Explicit Form) (Baht 20)
- P
LI
Written at
dnidn i LAau WA
I/We Date Month Year
e
Address
= v v
LAINTLILEULDDNY
Shareholders’
Registration No.
feym
Nationality
Wuddeduzes 136 AduEn wnsudl SR (MvnTw) (“LEEne’)
Being a shareholder of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited (“the Company”)
TnedauandnyauaunsAuN Wu uarasn@esasaziuuldivinty Aea
holding the Ordinary share in amount of shares, and eligible for votes
ganausunz 1 (navaunclalias 1 aw) (@uirnneudunslinesunisaaszaestidsmy Inadseazitaanuaidansasg 5)
Hereby appoint (May grant proxy to the Company’s Independent Director of which details as in Enclosure 5)
wEsUN LBagaaasa: / wadyunansal dauasim
Mr. Thana Thienachariya / Mr. Sunyaluck Chaikajornwat
O  nssunisdass (sadanidies 1 vinw) 21y gl
Independent Director (please choose only one) Age Years
@gl;ﬁ’m@‘uﬁ Ul FNLIA / W99
Address Road Sub»Distrigt -
A1LNa / 1R Fandn svialelawelel EG)
District Province Zip Code
O WL/ W/ WA Ritd) 1
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
@gl;ﬁ’m@ﬁ Ul FNLIA / W99
Address Road Sub-District
A8 / LR Fandn sia L sweilel 938
District Province Zip Code
O WNE/ W/ WA Ritd) il
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
aginuaan nuY ANLIA / WU
Address Road Sub-District
N8 / 11 Fandn s9ia e gweilel
District Province Zip Code

atiulaiizseuien Wudumaedwdiadnlssguuscaen@esapsiumuddnlunsysysadnddaiuilszantl 2568 luduaesmsii 29

sENe 2568 e 14.00 W Mustluunimeayszgakinuedidnneaiind (‘e-Meeting”, “e-AGM") Ieildisy1iu Zoom Teaztineviandn o s Auditorium 91 21 el

50 anANsAS SN unswd nad DA 21 (alAn) uaNAreumeIMTle ATRLN NN ANENszs TR MAd RaeN s sz R UAeR A NMsaTing w.A. 2563 uaz
= a4 Add 9 P I o Sd o
npnenFengeadevaw) Ainuodes denaciadauiluiu na uasaninawiag

As only one of my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 at 2.00

p.m. in the form of an electronic meeting (‘e-Meeting”, “e-AGM”) via the Zoom system, which will be broadcast live from the Auditorium Room, 21st floor of

GMM Grammy Place, located at No. 50, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok, according to the Emergency Decree on Electronic

Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020) and other related laws or regulations or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

v % 2
% 9o =

17 v o o = 17 v o o =
mwmwmuﬂu@umﬂmﬂiumu@um@@nmmmmuummuﬂnwmﬂumiﬂi:ﬁ;um\m AN
I/we appoint my/our proxy to cast vote according to my/our intention in the following manner:

MNAANALFUNY b 2 ﬁwﬂa:mﬁﬂmﬁmmgiﬁﬂmiﬁwﬁm AuuakLumladenausune (@UUA 5) W.A. 2550 Wi : 1/5

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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M9ef 1 Sunsrunisuaaseanigatidunulusanil 2567 wazsunsiuseauilszdiil 2567

Agenda 1  To acknowledge the declaration of the 2024 operational results and the Company’s Annual Report.

vy = = g vyt 9y o
'J'ﬁ‘:uiumm@@nmmmmuuummmnLﬂumimﬂﬂaﬂ@umum’m

This agenda does not require any vote as this is to inform the shareholders for acknowledgement.

N2 RarsanaydRuusnggiuznstuuazauiilsmanuiingda dmsusauthind fugn o 9uil 31 funnau 2567

Agenda 2 To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statements for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2024.

O n  Wuveudungiiavafansaunuazasdunudmwidn liyndsznsmafidiuauens

The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wiuueudunzeani@esasnzuuumunanuilszasdansdinidn fall
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wingne O Liviusian [ apeenides

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

M5z 3 RansanayindanassRumlsgnailsyanil 2567 dauniialiiflunudrsasmunguans

Agenda 3 To approve the appropriation of the 2024 net profit as statutory reserve fund.

aa

O () Weumeusunsiansfansnuazasiunudwdnldnlszniemaiiiuauens
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

O @ Wifuueudunzeani@esasnzuuumunanuilszasdansdinidn fal
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wingne O Liviusian [ aneenides

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

NsEii 4 Rarsanaysinipdnaluiiunaanuanisaniunul 2567
Agenda 4 To approve the omission of dividend payment from the 2024 operational results.

UM  fsuweusunsilavsfiansanuazasbiundnidldyndsznnsnudifuauans

The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

U@  Wiuseusunzeanidaaspzuuuniuaiulszasaasdmds sl

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O wingae O iwingae O aneanides

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

1521 5 WASNAYNRLAIAINTTNNISUNUNTTHNMSTIATUAINUABBNANNAIMUUIANINTE 1ls3anTl 2568

Agenda 5 To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for the year 2025.

aa

O M wipumeusunsilanifiansonuazasmbumdmdaldnnusznsmaiidiuaunas

The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

o o

O @ Wiuueudunzeani@esasnzunumunanuilszasdansdimidn fil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
D Laﬂﬂﬂi‘i‘uﬂﬂiﬁ’d 3 ¥inu muﬁmu@
Vote for all 3 directors who are propose by the Company.

O  @ennssunisduseynna

Vote for a certain director.

MNAANALFUNY b 2 ﬁwﬂazmﬁﬂmﬁmmgiﬁﬂmiﬁwﬁm AuuakLumladenausune (@UUA 5) W.A. 2550 Wil : 2/5

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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(1) wrai s ANSITRIESTN
Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham
O iudae O laiifiugae O sneanides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
(2) weHin Aynnas
Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong
O wingne O Liviusian O aneanideas
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
(3)  wreAE IFLNEEUNA
Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij
O wingne O Liviusian O sneanidas
Agreed Disagreed Abstained

= a wn o ' a o ' o o
2199 6 wmsm‘mm_&ummuummm'auumuﬂmznifmmsusmnu,aznmsnssumi‘qﬂﬂaﬂdﬂuwﬂ 2568

Agenda 6 To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2025.

O n  Wuweudungiiadvafansaunuazasdunudmwidn lyndsznsmafidiuauens
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
Yo o = - v oy o X
O (1) Imiuwau'awnmaﬂLﬂmmﬁ:LLuummmmﬂizmmmmwLm ANU
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O wingae O iwingae O aneanidas

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

e 7 Warsanayibmsusssgaauiduasiiuuagautinddmsiil 2568

Agenda 7 To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the year 2025.

O ¢ Wiuweudunziavifiansonuazawiunudimdnldnnisznismuiiiuauans
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
5 90 o = e ey o
O @ Wiuseudunzean@eaninzuuumunniudszasiasdnen fil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O fiugas O iifiusan O speanides

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

2M5E 8 AANsaULERLAN ) (A1N)
Agenda 8 To consider other matters. (if any)

U <  Wiuweudunsianifasanuazasiunudmidnldynlsenismuiiiuaunas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

O @  Wiuveudunzaan@esaspziuumunnutlszasiasdnign fail
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O wiugne O Liviusian [ apeanides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained

5. nmesasazuuudsnaesdunandunyluansylealdidullnansey i lumi@eneusunzal I9tednisasnzuuudeaiu ligndes uazldldlunisasazuuu
devaasdwidnlugiusiatiu
Casting of the vote by my/our Proxy for any agenda which is not in accordance with this Proxy Form shall be deemed an incorrect vote and is not
my/our vote as the shareholder.

6. Tunsdldawmidnllldseymnuszaadluniseanidasasazuunlunnselald viaseylilidaau vielunsdinfdseguinisfiansunvidaasuiluGesla

2 oA vy gy = PRSP = 4 A a vy g a 9 v o Aa aa a o PR

uanmilaandesfiszylidresiu sentansalidnisudlaulfeuudastaiinbindaiiaaselsznisla Wiuneudunzidnifiansuasaamunudinidnle
nnsznisadiiuanpes

MNAANALFUNY b 2 ﬁﬁﬁﬂi‘:ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬂiuquﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂd AuuakLumladenausune (@UUA 5) W.A. 2550 Wil : 3/5

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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If I/'we have not indicated my/our vote in any agenda, or the indicated vote is unclear, or if the Meeting considers or resolves any matter other than
those stated above, or if there is any change or amendment to any fact, my/our proxy shall have the right to consider and cast votes on my/our behalf
in all respects as deems appropriate.

o ¥

a e o o P i\ adlg o ' = = Y o o P - v v 1y o
AanslafigFuneudunsnssinldlunsussgn uwsinsdindSuneudunyeani@esnnuiidanidnssylumidensuduns Wisadeudrdmidldnszin
teaynUsznng

Any lawful act performed by my/our proxy in this Meeting, except in the case that my/our Proxy does not cast the votes as specified in the Proxy Form,
shall be deemed as my/our own act in all respects.

4 o . 4 s .
AN HNBLRUNS AN HIUNaLRune
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  ( ) Proxy Holder

4 o . 4 e .
AN HNBLRUNS [ANKa] HIUNaLaune
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  ( ) Proxy Holder

RHEILUR:

1. fhevunueusunzarsesanduny WEfuneudunaiiessapeadudidlseguuareon@asasazuuy Tiasnsouduenawuiulifiuneudunsaanu

P = o
WauENNNIaIAzILLLAeN S
»

y . Y
2. MILRONFINITNNNT ANTDIABNFAINTINNNIVILAVERIRRN AN TNNITUELPAR

3. Tunsdinfianszfazfiansanlunisseguanndinnssfiszylddnedu fuaudunzansnsoseyisnfinlilululszandeuuumidenandunzuon 1.

Remarks:

1. The shareholder assigning the Proxy must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote at the meeting and shall not split the number of shares to several
proxies to vote separately.

2. For agenda relating to election of directors, the election may be for the entire group of directors or each individual director.

3. In case the Meeting considers any matters other than those specified above, the shareholder may mark additional statement in the regular continued list
attached to the Proxy Form B.

MNAANALFUNY b 2 ﬁwﬂazmﬁﬂmﬁmmgiﬁﬂmiﬁwﬁm AuuakLumladenausune (@UUA 5) W.A. 2550 Wil : 4/5

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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luilszanpauuunuIRaNaLAUNE LU A
Reqular Continued Proxy Form B

s [ 24y 4 a v a & [ a o w
m'a‘mmauwﬂug'mxmugn’auumm UTEHN ALANLAN LNTHN 1NA (NWI1TU)
Authorization on Behalf of the Shareholder of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited
lunnstsyguandydiatiu tszand 2568 lududansit 29 wwieu 2568 1A 14.00 w. lugtluninisilsygaehudedidnnsaing (‘e-Meeting” , “e-AGM") Tngldl

92111 Zoom T9aztnananan o e Auditorium i 21 1aafi 50 81AsAENEN unsudl was ouwguean 21 (alAn) wansraeunswile lWATRILN ngamHe
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For the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 at 2.00 p.m.,_in the form of an electronic meeting

(“e-Meeting”, “e-AGM”) via the Zoom system, which will be broadcast live from the Auditorium Room, 21st floor of GMM Grammy Place, located at No. 50,
Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok, according to the Emergency Decree on Electronic Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020) and other
related laws or regulations or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue
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9N L3a9

Agenda Subject:
O ¢ ’Lﬁ;ﬁumuﬁumﬁaw‘ﬁﬁmsmwmmwﬁLmu‘ﬁwwL%ﬂﬁ’nﬂﬂi:mimuﬁ,ﬁummi
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wiuueudunzeani@esasnzuuumunanuilszasdansdinidn el

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O wingne O iwiugine O aneanideas
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
Nngzh 15849 :
Agenda Subject:

O 0 fuseusunsiavsfasnnuazasmiimdmdldnnuszmemuiiiussans
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
D 9 90 o = - 5 v o X
M Wifuneudunzeandesainzuunninainlszasdresdimidn qil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O wingae O 1adwingine O aneanides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
a - - & '
95N 15949 . LAANAINGINNNG (AD)
Agenda Subject:

(1) Fanssunng

Director's name
O wingne O iwiugne O aneanideas
Agreed Disagreed Abstained

(2) BansIuNg

Director's name
O wingae O 1adwingine O aneanidas

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

(3) BansIuNNg

Director’'s name
O iudae O Lidiugae O sneanides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained

fmidaaiusasiimemslululszasdauuumidaneudunzuny o gndestdysaluaziiuacuasamnilsznig
|/We certified that the information contained in this Regular Continued Proxy Form B is complete and true.

= ¥ o = VYo o
A9TD HuaURUNg A9TD HIuNaLaUNy
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
o v o =) Yo o
ANTR AEN MY ANTR NIUNaLAUNY
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
MNAANALFUNY b 2 ﬁwﬂa:mﬁﬂmﬁmmgiﬁﬂmiﬁwﬁm AuuakLumladenausune (@UUA 5) W.A. 2550 Wil : 5/5

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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Proxy Form C

° @ . & o @ o
(wuuildiawznsaigiaiuiudamusirsdszinauazusndlinalamauludssmalnedugsurhnuazguaiu)

(For foreign shareholders who have custodians in Thailand only)

DMETEE
ansuanuil
20 UM
Duty Stamp
Affixed
(Baht 20)

= P

LUEILT

Written at
P I o o &
AINLAN AUN LAY WA
I/We Date Month Year
e
Address wanzdaudieiu

Shareholders’

Arymp Registration No.
Nationality

luguedusznaugsiadudiulnuazguasiu (Custodian) ity

As the Custodian of
dafudferures U3Em ABEN wngudl AR (MvEw) (“LFiner)
Being a shareholder of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited (“the Company”)

Tnefiadusnsiysuauiaduss Hu uazean@esasazuunliivindy Re
holding the Ordinary share in amount of shares, and eligible for votes
gaNaLdunl (NausunslawNes 1 AL) (@ u1sadaudunylingsunisaassaaatiinina s e aviBaan NRaNgannsae 5)
Hereby appoint (May grant proxy to the Company’s Independent Director of which details as in Enclosure 5)
wEsun 1Fagaaadey / wadnananual dauasim
Mr. Thana Thienachariya / Mr. Sunyaluck Chaikajornwat
O  nssumsdass (Wendeniiles 1 vin) 81¢) g
Independent Director (please choose only one) Age Years
agifl’mmﬁ Ul FLIA / W99
Address Road Sub-District
ALN8 / 1R Jaudn svia |1 sureilel 9178
District Province Zip Code
O WL/ W/ WA Ritd) 1
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
agtuaan nuY ALA / WU
Address Road Sub-District
A8 / 1R Jandn svia e gweilel 938
District Province Zip Code
O WE/ U/ WA Ritd) fl
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
@@:ﬁ’mmﬁ nuu FNLIA / W99
Address Road Sub-District
A1LN8 / 1R i svia |y surelel 138
District Province Zip Code

raileelaiaseudien Wudumaedmidiiedlszguuaseandaasnsuund s lunsussgasnitga aiuilszaqil 2568 Tuduaimsii 29

sy 2568 1aan 14.00 W Tugtluunmsiszgakin@edidnneaiind (‘e-Meeting”, “e-AGM") Ingilds1iu Zoom Teazinevendn 04 sies Auditorium 914 21 iaeil

50 eNASRENEH UNIHH AR DLUWAYNEN 21 (B1AN) uItAARIAEMTE LATRILN NP MAWSEI WA RRENsL ST ReB A NMeaTind W.A. 2563 uay

- a A A4 g I I o Sd o
NOUNNEVTANITILELID] NINTITEN MiEWQWQL@@u»LﬂIuQu AN UWRZADLNDUAE

As only one of my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 at 2.00

p.m. in the form of an electronic meeting (“e-Meeting”, “e-AGM”) via the Zoom system, which will be broadcast live from the Auditorium Room, 21st floor of

GMM Grammy Place, located at No. 50, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok, according to the Emergency Decree on Electronic

Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020) and other related laws or regulations or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

milsAanauguns uuy A : FadseniAnsuimuganianisAFes MuiaLULideNeusuny (U7 5) W.A. 2550 Wi : 1/6

Proxy Form C: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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v v ar Y Var o Y a
‘m‘wL@’l‘u’am’auauwﬂuamm‘l.lfawnzL‘mmuﬂizqmmzﬂmL@mmmmuﬂumdu AU
|/we appoint my/our proxy to cast vote according to my/our intention in the following manner:

o o v & Sa s a o o
O HALAUNZATHATUIUUUNUNANDD uariandeenideaasnzuunls
Appoint my/our proxy for all shares held and eligible to cast votes.

o ] & v o v aa a a v
D HALRUNCUNAIU A YUANEY i uazildvsaanideaasnzuuuls

Aagangael 11/ Enclosure 11

=
LARIN

Appoint my/our proxy for partial shares of: Ordinary share shares, eligible for

v
o = o

5 Y o P o = > > &
‘m‘wL@’l‘uauauauwﬂuqmmuaum@@ﬂL@iﬂmmumumu‘u’lwLm'lumiﬂixﬂ;mﬂu NP
I/we appoint my/our proxy to cast vote according to my/our intention in the following manner:

N1 Sunsunisuasduanigatiuaulusail 2567 uazsunsiusneuilszanil 2567

Agenda 1  To acknowledge the declaration of the 2024 operational results and the Company’s Annual Report.

LIy = < PR B
’ﬂﬁ‘ziﬂﬁi[ﬂ@\i'ﬂ'ﬂﬂL@EI\?@\W]ZLLHHLH’E]\W'W]Lﬂuﬂ’]ﬁ‘LL@ﬂiﬁHﬂ'ﬂHuiUWi’]U

This agenda does not require any vote as this is to inform the shareholders for acknowledgement.

votes

Mg 2 Rasanaylauugnsguznsduuazauilsmanuiingda dwiusauilin® fugn o Suii 31 Sunnau 2567

Agenda 2 To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statements for the fiscal year ending

December 31, 2024.

aa

O )  Wuseusunziaviiansonuazasdunudwd indsznisauiidiuaunas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
v o . - -
O @ Wffuneudunzesn@esnnzuuimnaiudsyasmasdingn fil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O wfiugne e O ifiugae W@ [ sneanides e
Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained votes
M5 3 AasanaysindanassRuilsgnilseantl 2567 dauniialiiflunudisasmungusna
Agenda 3  To approve the appropriation of the 2024 net profit as statutory reserve fund.
[l ) 290 o Sa aa = > PR A a
FLuQiuu@mmmzmmvwma‘m’wmeaummumwL@ﬂiﬂnﬂﬂizﬂ’wim’wuwmuaumi
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
D ) v e o = - > v o &
( '1uq€uu@uaum’a’anmmmmwuumumwﬂ:’:mm@wﬁwLm [\
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wiudae 1@e O 'laduiiudae Re O sneenides R
Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained votes
S a we 1 a o a =
219N 4 ‘wm'itu'l'agumﬂmmauﬂ'uwamnNam'iml.uumuﬂ 2567
Agenda 4 To approve the omission of dividend payment from the 2024 operational results.
O )  Wuneudunsiiansiasanuazasmunudmidldnnsznismufiiugsens
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wiuneudunzesni@easnsazuuumuniiulsrasdasdnidn fail
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wiudae 1Re O 'laduiiudae R O sneenides Ren
Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained votes

milsAanauguns uuy A : FadseniAnsuimuganianisAFes MuiaLULideNeusuny (U7 5) W.A. 2550
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Proxy Form C: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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N5z 5

Agenda 5

O o

O @

1529 6

NNTUNBYNRUFAIAINTTHNNTUNIUNTTNNITNATUMUBADDNAINAMAUINNITE 1534711 2568

To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for the year 2025.

WigFuneusunslavifansanuazasmumdnidn dnndssnsmuiiviuauans
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

o o

WiFuneusunzeanfesaiazuuuauainlsyasdaasdanda fsll

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O @ennsaunnsna 3 vinu auiiaus
Vote for all 3 directors who are proposed by the Company

O dennssuniaflusayena
Vote for a certain director.

(1) wailuad AFATEETTN
Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham
O wingae Re O 1adwingine Re O aneanidas

Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained

(2) weNm Aynnas
Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong
O wingae Re O 1adwingine Re O aneanides

Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained

(3) wWeTEN TLNFEUNA
Mrs. Nidcha Jirametthanakij
O wiugae e O idiuse Rei O speanides

Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained

NTUAYIRNUUAAIADLUNUANENTTNNITUTENUAL ANENTTUNNS T RtiBaduS1T] 2568

Agenda 6

O n)

O @)

M9 7

To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2025.

rLazs.»u/ o s

FFuseudunslavsRansanuarasdunudindnldyndsznisanadiiuannag

The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

WigFuneusunzeandeaaiazuuumiumnlsrasiaasdansn fsil
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

=3 k% a 1@ v a a
O iuge e O Lidiugae e O sneenides

Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained

Agenda 7

O @

O @

fansanaysiinisussnigaautinduasituamaaurinddniuil 2568

To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the year 2025.

WiFuneusunziavifasanuazasumdmdr ldnndsznsmuiiiiuaunss

The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

rLazs.»u/ o

FFuseudunzean@esatnzuuunuautlszasdmasiinedn fall
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
=3 v a 1@ v a a
[ wiuse e [ adudiusne e [ apaanides
Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained

milsAanauguns uuy A : FadseniAnsuimuganianisAFes MuiaLULideNeusuny (U7 5) W.A. 2550

Proxy Form C: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550

a
LAE

votes

a
LAE

votes

=
LARIN

votes

a
LARIN

votes

a
LARIN

votes

9N : 3/6
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= a o o v o
292N 8 WANTWUILTBRIBU ) (DH)

Agenda 8 To consider other matters (if any)

O Wiuueusunsianifasanuazamaumdmidldynsenismudifiuaunis
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
U @ Wifsuseusunzesnidavasnzuuumuannaszasiasdindn fail

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O iuge e O Lidiugae e O sneenides e
Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained votes

5 nsasazuuu@snaeasdunendunyluansyleldidullnansey i lunmideneusunsdl Wtednisasazuuudeatiu ligndes uazldldilunisasazuuu
@evzesdmidnluguzdieu
Casting of the vote by my/our Proxy for any agenda which is not in accordance with this Proxy Form shall be deemed an incorrect vote and is not
my/our vote as the shareholder.

6. Tunsdldimdnllldseymnuszaadluniseanidasasazuunlunnselald viessylilidaau vielunsdinfdseguinisiansunvidaasui luGesla
d o A vy o = Naa = A4 A a v @ a v vo o Ao aa a Y v vy
u@ﬂmuammimmmiqmq AU iqummmwummﬁl‘u wasuudasvFaiiapndaiiaasedsenisla 'lmiumu'aummmm’mm LL@szﬁILLWWH’WWLQﬂﬂ
NnusznseuTiiiuanaag
If I/we have not indicated my/our vote in any agenda, or the indicated vote is unclear, or if the Meeting considers or resolves any matter other than
those stated above, or if there is any change or amendment to any fact, my/our proxy shall have the right to consider and cast votes on my/our behalf
in all respects as deems appropriate.

'
o v

Aamslafigsuneudunsnazrin iU lunsussg uusinsdifigiuneusuns bisan@asnaiidmidnssylumideneudun: Wileiadauindwidldnssin
teay)nilsznng

Any lawful act performed by my/our proxy in this Meeting, except in the case that my/our Proxy does not cast the votes as specified in the Proxy Form,
shall be deemed as my/our own act in all respects.

XGh fuauduny XGh fiunauduny
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
2 Y o 2 o o
ANTR HNALRUNS ANTR HIuNauaune
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
RAEILUR:

£

» . . ; .
1. wildeneudunzuuy a. dlanznsdligfieiuiidengdelunadewdudsmusiralsamanazusiaisWidalomau (Custodian) Tutlszimalnedududn
woy ., b
uazguauliyinty
o o9 Y e oA o 2
2. wanguisesuuunfeniumidenauduns e

vl o

(1) wiBaseuarwaangiedulidalnbeu (Custodian) udanfiunisasunlumidasaudunzunu

Q

@  wideiuiuindaswnnlumidesaudunsunuldsueyniniszneugsia AalaiAsw (Custodian)

2t 9 o o > o 990 o = = o 3 = \ \ ° 9 8 9y o
3. EJJﬂ@'VJLWIN@'Ll’llu'VI5"]5@@QN@U@IHVI;FLMQTUN@UQHVWLW?.l\'ii"]?;lme;l'lLﬂu%L”ll']ﬂTZ‘qNLL@Z@@ﬂLNﬂ\?ﬂ\?ﬁzLLuu VLN@'TN'T?HLLU\?LLﬂﬂqunuwulﬂETUN@U@HV}%V@WH

- = Y
AULNALENNNIRIAZLLRE LA

¥ . Y Y
4. YIHRBNAINIINNNT AINNTDIABNFAINTINNNIVTAYERRRNAMTHNITuELPAS

5 lunsdipfionszfazfiansanlunisdseguuinndnnnseiszylddnesiu uavdunzanunsossyiisdnldlululszarsauuumidenaudunsuny a. a1y

milsAanauguns uuy A : FadseniAnsuimuganianisAFes MuiaLULideNeusuny (U7 5) W.A. 2550 Wil : 4/6

Proxy Form C: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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GRAMMY

Remarks:

1. This Proxy Form C. is used only in case of shareholder whose name appears in the registration book as a foreign investor and has appointed a
Custodian in Thailand as a custodian.

2. Evidence which must be attached with the Proxy are:
(1)  Power of attorney from shareholder assigning the custodian to execute the proxy on his/her behalf.
(2) A document confirming that the custodian has the permission to conduct the custodian business.

3. The shareholder assigning the Proxy must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote at the meeting and shall not split the number of shares to

several proxies to vote separately.
For agenda relating to election of directors, the election may be for the entire group of directors or each individual director.

5. In case the Meeting considers any matters other than those specified above, the shareholder may mark additional statement in the regular
continued list attached to the Proxy Form C.

milsAanauguns uuy A : FadseniAnsuimuganianisAFes MuiaLULideNeusuny (U7 5) W.A. 2550 Wil : 5/6

Proxy Form C: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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nmsnauaunslugruzilugteiuuas U3En ABEN wnsull A1in (WnTw)
Authorization on Behalf of the Shareholder of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited
lunnstsyguandoydfatiu szand 2568 uSufanns? 29 WiEneY 2568 19A1 14.00 1. ’LuiﬂLmumMiﬂmmum’aL@ﬂm@un@’ “e-Meeting” , “e-AGM") Tparld

7¥UU Zoom sﬂﬂ'ﬂzﬂ']?_l‘ﬂﬂﬂ@ﬂ tu Wag Auditorium mu 21 LZW.IW 50 @nANTALENLEN Lmi‘llll AR nuummw 21 (ﬂiﬂﬂ) WINARBLLALITE LAY NIAUNNY

o v LA e = < a Ad 9 4 A=A o Sd o
WqNWiziqﬁjﬂqv]uﬂqqﬂflﬂﬂqi‘ﬂi‘ﬁfqﬂﬂquﬂﬂﬂLﬂﬂVlTﬂuﬂd‘W.ﬂ. 2563 LAZNHUNIENTANHITILL LA MNLIURY ﬂ?'ﬂquqﬂ\uﬂﬂuiﬂiu'lu LA LLAZANIUNDUAIE

For the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 at 2.00 p.m.,

in the form of an electronic meeting

(“e-Meeting”, “e-AGM”) via the Zoom system, which will be broadcast live from the Auditorium Room, 21st floor of GMM Grammy Place, located at No. 50,

Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlong Toei Nuea, Wattana, Bangkok, according to the Emergency Decree on Electronic Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020) and other

a
25N
Agenda

O o)

O @)

a
5N
Agenda

O o)

O @)

a
9N

Agenda

related laws or regulations or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue

P
L399

Subject:
IFueusunsavsRansanuazasiunud i linussnismuflidiuauans
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
Ifuseusunzeanidaaspziuumuanalizasadwdn il

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O wingae Re O 1adwingine e O aneanidas
Agreed votes Disagreed votes Abstained

529 ;

Subject:

Wifuneudunsiavifansanuazasiunudwd ldyndsenismuiiiusuans
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
Wifuneudunzaan deeainzununnmnlsvasiaesdingn Al

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O iudae e O Lidiugae e
Agreed votes Disagreed votes
G'm : Lgﬂﬂéaﬂiiuﬂﬂi (Aa)
Subject:
(1) Fangsung
Director's name
O wingne e O iwingine Re
Agreed votes Disagreed votes
(2) Tanssunng
Director's name
O iude e O Lidiugae e
Agreed votes Disagreed votes
(3) Fangsung
Director's name
O iude e O Lidiugae e
Agreed votes Disagreed votes

O aneanides
Abstained

O speanides
Abstained

O aneanides
Abstained

O aneanides
Abstained

fidaaiusasiimamslululszadeuuumiidenaudunzuon a gnaanidysaiuaziiluaiuasonilsznig

|/We certified that the information contained in this Regular Continued Proxy Form C is complete and true.

asie Huauduny asie
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  (
asie Huauduny asie
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  (

milsAanauguns uuy A : FadseniAnsuimuganianisAFes MuiaLULideNeusuny (U7 5) W.A. 2550

Proxy Form C: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550

a
LAEIN

votes

a
LARIN

votes

o
LRI
votes

a
LAEN
votes

a
LAEN
votes

Aiunauduny
Proxy Holder

Hiunauduny
Proxy Holder

7N : 6/6
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d o ° 4 a a d
suusdsnanlszasaitnsnnlszyumiydaedulszdil) 2568 daedidnnseting

GRAMMY
Registration form for attending the 2025 AGM via Electronic Media (e-AGM)
A A
AUN i DU Wi
Date Month Year
Y Y @ v A A
(1) VNI e NNBAVTATUTZ B U A UITOIAUN N e
I/We, Identification Card/Passport number
(11315 1 DO STRRTTE LY I DU BT Y/UR o I TS
Nationality Residing at No. Road Sub district
° o o @ A J
DUND/BUR i e NI, iﬂﬁvlﬂﬁ‘]ﬂmﬂ .................................................
District Province Postal Code
I YA 9 A v ad g A o o
) WudaeuYDe UTHN BBV UNTUN TINA (UN1FU)
Being a shareholder of GMM Grammy Public Company Limited
a gy Ay 3 2 v
UNSIVIUNDDT Ui Tﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁui?ﬂﬂﬂﬁu .................................................................. Hu
Shareholders’ Registration No. Holding the total amount of shares

4 1 1 i ag a Jd o . U '3
Uszaadozsmilszguuazasazuuuriudedannsoling dmSumsiszyumiiydaediulsydill 2568 (e-AGM)
I would like to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via electronic media (e-AGM)

Y Y % T A ag a 4
|:| 10159052 PUAIANOIWIUTODIANNTOUNT (-AGM)
Self-Attend meetings via electronic media (e-AGM)

L] s0udumnels (oanaamnaa). ..o, W3 0152900890612

Proxy to attend the meeting.

Y 1 ' { ag a o
() Yoyalumstadaismadimwlszgurudediannseing (e-AGM)

Please send the Link to join the meeting via electronic media (e-AGM) by below email

DU .o (Msaseay)
e-Mail Please fil in the blank.
TNTAMIUODO ..o (T1sasey)
Mobile Number Please fil in the blank.

(3.1) Tadupnmsiedugus L MuaTd a0 7 35 msens sz meludum 18 e 2568

Please submit the required document per an Enclosure 7. by April 18, 2025

4 Vo o o A o v 1 a v Y o { Y v
(3.2) We'lasumssududau VSN wzsadeasamanimlszauuazsmanswlszaua ludwmannuldszy 13

Once you have verified, the company will send the Link to join the meeting via email
(3.3) Twiulszgudiouazdoussow mutindgaeiu wagmutinsdszyyuld dmSumadhsmlssyy e-AGM

Please prepare your Account Number and your Identification Card Number for log in the e-AGM meeting.

AIBO/SIGNCA. ..o H0o¥1/Shareholder
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GRAMMY

GMM Grammy Public Company Limited

50 GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Rd (Asoke),

Khlongtoeinuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: (66) 2669-9000

\

www.gmmgrammy.com | [3 I3 gmmgrammyofficial
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